%

Ve

\
N CITY OF

YORK ‘

COUNCIL

Notice of a public meeting of

Area Planning Sub-Committee

To: Councillors Hollyer (Chair), Crawshaw (Vice-Chair),
Cullwick, Fisher, Galvin, Craghill, Melly, Orrell, Waudby,
Webb and Perrett

Date: Wednesday, 25 November 2020

Time: 4.30 pm

Venue: Remote Meeting

AGENDA

1. Declarations of Interest

At this point in the meeting, Members are asked to declare:
e any personal interests not included on the Register of
Interests
e any prejudicial interests or
e any disclosable pecuniary interests
which they may have in respect of business on this agenda.

2. Minutes (Pages 1 - 6)
To approve and sign the minutes of the last meeting of the Area
Planning Sub-Committee held on 11 November 2020.

3. Public Participation

At this point in the meeting members of the public who have
registered to speak can do so. Members of the public may speak
on agenda items or on matters within the remit of the committee.

Please note that our registration deadlines have changed to
2 working days before the meeting, in order to facilitate the
management of public participation at remote meetings. The
deadline for registering at this meeting is 5:00pm on Monday, 23
November 2020.

www.york.gov.uk



b)

To register to speak please visit
www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings to fill out an online
registration form. If you have any questions about the
registration form or the meeting, please contact the relevant
Democracy Officer, on the details at the foot of the agenda.

Webcasting of Remote Public Meetings

Please note that, subject to available resources, this remote
public meeting will be webcast including any registered public
speakers who have given their permission. The remote public
meeting can be viewed live and on demand at
www.york.gov.uk/webcasts.

During coronavirus, we've made some changes to how we're
running council meetings. See our coronavirus updates
(www.york.gov.uk/COVIDDemocracy ) for more information on
meetings and decisions.

Plans List
To determine the following planning applications:

Telecommunications Mast Park Inn North (Pages 7 - 28)
Street, [20/01031/FUL]

This application seeks permission for the upgrade of existing
rooftop telecommunications equipment including ancillary works
[Micklegate]

44 Tranby Avenue Osbaldwick York YO10 (Pages 29 - 46)
3NJ [20/00338/FUL]

This application seeks permission for the erection of a two storey
extension to the side of a two storey detached dwelling.
[Osbaldwick]

Land Lying to the North Of Kimberlow (Pages 47 - 92)
Lane Heslington, York, [20/00532/REMM]

This reserved matters application seeks permission for the
erection of a children's nursery with associated vehicle drop off
and landscaping following outline permission 20/01270/OUT for
a new university campus. [Heslington Parish Council]


http://www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings
http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts
http://www.york.gov.uk/COVIDDemocracy

d)

5.

The Tile Company Unit 2 Kettlestring (Pages 93 - 118)
Lane, York YO30 4XF [20/00148/FULM]

This application seeks permission for the erection of eight units
for light industry or general industry or storage/distribution or
storage/distribution with ancillary trade counter use (use classes
B1(c), B2, B8); erection of one unit for the use of motor vehicle
repairs or light industry or general industry or storage/distribution
or storage/distribution with ancillary trade counter use (use
classes B1(c), B2, B8); erection of substation; and associated
car parking and landscaping following demolition of Unit 2
Kettlestring Lane and Unit 1 Lysander Close.

[Rawcliffe And Clifton Without]

Urgent Business
Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the
Local Government Act 1972.

Democracy Officer:

Chris Elliott
e Telephone — (01904) 553631

Email christopher.elliott@york.gov.uk

For more information about any of the following please contact the
Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting:

Registering to speak

Business of the meeting

Any special arrangements

Copies of reports and

For receiving reports in other formats

Contact details are set out above.



mailto:your.name@york.gov.uk

This information can be provided in your own language.
EPEAEMNESRHEEREIESS (cantonese)
\2 S AT oo ST (I (TS AR | (Bengali)

Ta informacja moze by¢ dostarczona w twoim

wiasnym jezyku. (Palish)

Bu bilgiyi kendi dilinizde almaniz miimkiindiir. (Turkish)
G e U G < T A (Ura)
T (01904) 551550




Page 1 Agenda Item 2

City of York Council Committee Minutes
Meeting Area Planning Sub-Committee
Date 11 November 2020

Present Councillors Hollyer (Chair), Crawshaw (Vice-

Chair), Cullwick, Fisher, Galvin, Kilbane (as
substitute) Craghill, Melly, Orrell, Waudby
and Perrett

Apologies Councillor Webb

25.

26.

27.

28.

Declarations of Interest

Members were invited to declare, at this point in the meeting,
any personal interests not included on the Register of Interests,
any prejudicial interests or any disclosable pecuniary interests
that they might have in the business on the agenda.

ClIr Fisher declared a non-prejudicial, non-pecuniary interest in
Agenda item 5) Barnitts, 28A Colliergate [19/02753/FULM] and
[19/02754/LBC] in that he was friends with a member of the St
Andrews Residents’ Association, which had objected to the
scheme. He confirmed that his friend had not expressed a view
on this application.

Minutes

Resolved: That the minutes of the Area Planning Sub-
Committee meeting held on 15 October 2020 be
approved and then signed by the Chair at a later
date.

Public Participation

It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak
under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme on general
issues within the remit of the Sub-Committee.

Plans List

Members considered a schedule of reports of the Assistant

Director, Planning and Public Protection, relating to the following
planning applications, outlining the proposals and relevant



29.

Page 2

policy considerations and setting out the views of consultees
and officers.

Barnitts 28A Colliergate York [19/02753/FULM] and
[19/02754/LBC]

Members considered a full application and listed building
consent from Oakgate Group Ltd and Barnitts Ltd. for the
conversion of Drill Hall and upper floors of 28a Colliergate from
retail to residential (Use class C3) creating 10no. townhouses
and 2no. apartments, and associated alterations.

Officers gave a presentation based upon the slides at pages 51

- 71 of the Agenda and reported:

e A correction to the officer recommendation to approve the
listed building consent application [19/02754/LBC], the
recommendation should have been to ‘REFUSE’.

¢ An additional representation had been received from
Highway Network Management regarding the waste
collection arrangement. They advised that this would require
management, to ensure bins aren’t left roadside for
excessive periods. Due to the size of the bins and
convoluted route between the store and roadside (through
the drill hall) it is not expected waste services would enter the
site for collection.

e An additional representation had been received from the
Conservation Architect which had been in reply to the
applicants note for members. The Conservation Officer
considered that the significance of the drill hall does not rest
“almost entirely on its external appearance”. Though
architecturally the exterior is the most impressive part of the
building, the spatial qualities and plan form are also of
significance (i.e. its hall like qualities), which though
compromised by the inserted first floor, are still legible. This
understanding will be lost as a consequence of the proposed
scheme. Furthermore, the exterior will be harmed by the
introduction of the roof-lights and the new windows which will
appear modern, compared to those existing which are
traditional appearance.

It was reported that six people had registered to speak on this
application.

Mr Paul May spoke in objection to the proposal expressing
concern that the townhouses and apartments were likely be



Page 3

used as holiday lets and that should this be approved, there
would be adverse implications on housing policy.

Mr Phil Pinder, on behalf of York Retail Forum, spoke in support
of the proposal urging members to approve the application as
submitted, on the grounds that it is York’s best store and an
employer of over 40 people.

Mr Andrew Lowson, spoke in support for the scheme and
considered that it was vital for members to approve the proposal
in order to secure the long term future of this retail unit in the
city.

Mr Bill Woolley spoke in support of the application. He
considered that the reason for the officer recommendation to
refuse the proposal was due to the lack of affordable housing
contribution. This stipulation had arisen due to the council’s
conservation team and Historic England, which have sought to
recreate something long gone by insisting that there is an
internal open space from ground floor to roof level and from
gable end to a new and reconstructed gable end. This had
reduced the space of the scheme making it less viable, resulting
in there being no further allocation to cover the affordable
housing contribution

Mr Paul Thompson, the existing owner of Barnitts spoke about
the need to adapt their business in response to the rise of
internet shopping. He urged members to approve the proposal
to safeguard over 40 jobs and to show the council’s
commitment to longstanding York businesses that make the City
such as great place to live and visit.

Mr Richard France, the developer of the scheme spoke about
how various pressures had impacted upon the viability of the
proposal, and that although they were content to pay a
commuted sum (of approximately £80k) towards education and
in respect of sport and leisure, they were unable to make a
further contribution towards affordable housing.

In response to members’ questions, officers advised that where
a consensus could not be reached between the developer and
the Local Planning Authority on such matters, the developer
would have been advised to meet the costs of a District Valuer’s
assessment, likely to cost under £10k. Officers confirmed that
this had been their advice to the developer in February 2020.



Page 4

In response to members questions, the developer confirmed
that they had not refused to employ the services of the District
Valuer and that they had no objection in principal to that
process, although they had concerns that this would add further
delay, (approximately 3 months, although difficult to confirm in
view of the covid emergency).

[There was a short comfort break from 6.10 pm until 6.20 pm]

After debate, ClIr Craghill moved, and Cllr Crawshaw seconded,
that the application be deferred to allow the applicant the
opportunity to undertake an independent valuer assessment to
investigate what an appropriate commuted sum would be in
respect of affordable housing. Clirs: Craghill, Crawshaw,
Cullwick, Fisher, Galvin, Kilbane, Melly, Orrell, Perrett and
Hollyer all voted in favour of this motion. Cllr Waudby abstained
from voting and the motion was declared carried. It was
therefore:

Resolved: That the application be DEFERRED.

Reason: That delegated authority be given to the
Assistant Director for Planning and Public
Protection, in consultation with the Chair and
Vice-Chair as to the wording for the reason for
refusal.

Listed Building Consent [19/02754/LBC]

CllIr Craghill moved, and Clir Crawshaw seconded, that the
listed building consent be deferred until such a time that the
applicant had submitted an acceptable scheme. Clirs: Craghill,
Crawshaw, Cullwick, Fisher, Galvin, Kilbane, Melly, Orrell,
Perrett and Hollyer all voted in favour of this motion. ClIr
Waudby abstained from voting and the motion was declared
carried. It was therefore:

Resolved: That the application be DEFERRED.

Reason: That delegated authority be given to the
Assistant Director for Planning and Public
Protection, in consultation with the Chair and
Vice-Chair as to the wording for the reason for
refusal.



Page 5

CllIr Hollyer, Chair
[The meeting started at 4.30 pm and finished at 7.00 pm].



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 7 Agenda ltem 4a
COMMITTEE REPORT

Date: 25 November 2020  Ward: Micklegate
Team: West Area Parish: Micklegate Planning
Panel
Reference: 20/01031/FUL
Application at: Telecommunications Mast Park Inn North Street York
For: Upgrade of existing rooftop telecommunications equipment
including ancillary works
By: Hifzul Moosa
Application Type: Full Application
Target Date: 30 November 2020

Recommendation: Approve

1.0 PROPOSAL

1.1 The application seeks planning permission for the upgrade of existing
telecommunications apparatus on the roof of the Park Inn Hotel located within York
city centre. The Park Inn Hotel is located on the bank of the River Ouse within York
city centre, positioned between Lendal Bridge and Ouse Bridge. It is accessible
from North Street. The applicant advises that the upgrade will provide the latest 5G
technology.

1.2 The rooftop contains existing telecommunications installations that consists of
three single pole antenna of approximately 2.5m height and associated cabinets.

1.3 Planning permission was refused on 14 February 2020 (19/02629/FUL) for the
upgrade of the telecommunications equipment. The number of proposed antennas
have been reduced from the refused scheme as well as the removal of the proposed
dishes and external cabinets.

1.4 The apparatus proposed includes:

- in the same location as the existing equipment on the roof; the northern and
southern ends and within a central position between the two there will be 2no.
apertures each containing an antenna within the aperture casing, each erected on a
single pole

- other ancillary telecommunication equipment

- relocation of section of handrail to accommodate pod (1.1m high)

- retention of existing dish fitted on existing support pole

1.5 The Park Inn Hotel is unlisted but is located within the designated York Central
Historic Core Conservation Area (YCHCCA) and in Character Area 22: Railway
Area.



Page 8

1.6 The application has been called-in by Clir Baker citing that there is significant
wider public interest regarding public safety of the new technology and there is the
potential adverse impact on nature conservation and bio-diversity due to the new
technology.

Planning History

1.7 19/02629/FUL Upgrade of existing rooftop telecommunication apparatus with
associated works; refused for two reasons; the telecommunication equipment by
virtue of their height bulk and quantity would have a greater visual intrusive
appearance, which would be prominent in significant views and harmful to the
character and appearance of the York Central Historic Core Conservation Area.
Secondly, for the same reasons and given the additional prominence of the
telecommunications equipment on this tall building which would be seen in the same
sightline as principal architectural features, would detract from the setting of
neighbouring listed buildings. In both reasons for refusal the public benefits
identified were not considered to outweigh the harm to the designated heritage
assets.

1.8 There is relevant history relating to the installation of telecommunications
equipment submitted as a prior approval under part 24 of Schedule 2 of the Town
and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as amended)
and includes:

15/00196/TCNOT Upgrade of telecommunications equipment; no objections from
LPA; 25.03.2019

15/02039/TCNOT Upgrade of telecommunications equipment and associated works;
no objections from LPA: 22.10.2015

2.0 POLICY CONTEXT

2.1 PUBLICATION DRAFT LOCAL PLAN 2018

C1l Communications Development

D1 Placemaking

D4 Conservation Areas

D11 Extensions and Alterations to Existing buildings

2.2 DRAFT 2005 DEVELOPMENT CONTROL LOCAL PLAN (DCLP)

GP20 Telecommunication Development
GP1 Design
GP18 External Attachments to Buildings

HE3 Conservation Areas



Page 9

3.0 CONSULTATIONS

Design, Conservation and Sustainable Development (DCSD) (Conservation Officer)

3.1 The Park Inn is identified in the YCHCCA as a building that detracts from the
character and appearance of the conservation area as a result of its excessive
scale, height, slab like form, lack of affinity with its context and dominating impact
particularly in river views. The building is highly prominent in street level views from
Lendal Bridge, Ouse Bridge, Wellington Row, North Street, the St Martin’s Courtyard
river frontage (City Screen/Revolution/Pitcher & Piano) and others, and in elevated
views including from the central lower of York Minster. Roof installations are visible
in all of these views.

3.2 The current proposal represents a significant reduction in quantity and height of
equipment proposed. Replacement antennas have been reduced to the existing
number and other equipment omitted. The replacement antennas are described as
being approx. 1.5m higher than existing and will be painted light grey.

3.3 | consider that as a consequence of the height of the site and the like-for-like
number of fixtures to be replaced the additional impact of the proposed installation in
views of the roofscape will be low.

Micklegate Planning Panel

3.4 Any response will be reported verbally.

4.0 REPRESENTATIONS

4.1 The application has been advertised by site and press notice as well as
neighbour notification. Three letters of objection have been received; two from local
residents and one from a relevant campaign body, however that campaign body has
not been identified. In summary the objections include:

o the ICNIRP self- certification is invalid; it does not contain a valid statement of
compliance with ICNIRP guidelines. Any statement of compliance is based on
a flawed assessment of cumulative emissions; it excludes emissions from the
planned/required 5G network in this locality entirely

e unsure of the possible effects of a concentration of 5G will have upon human
life and the environment from higher frequencies and additional connections.

¢ the technology has not been tested and the cumulative effect is unknown and
it is in the interests of the residents, that as a Council you refuse the
application until more research is completed regarding safety of the public.



Page 10

e 5G was first developed as a military grade weapon for crowd dispersal;
residents using Park Inn will be unaware of the exposure they are presenting
themselves to.

5.0 APPRAISAL

5.1 Key Issues:
e Impact upon the character and appearance of the conservation area and
setting of neighbouring listed buildings
e Ecology Impacts
e Health and Safety

LEGISLATIVE BACKGROUND

5.2 The site is within a designated conservation area (York Central Historic Core
Conservation Area). The Council has a statutory duty (under section 72 of the
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990) to consider the
desirability of preserving or enhancing the character and appearance of designated
conservation areas.

5.3 Additionally, Section 66 (1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation
Areas) Act 1990 state that in considering whether to grant planning permission for
development which affects a listed building or its setting, the local planning authority
shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or
any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses.

5.4 Case law has made clear that when deciding whether harm to a conservation
area or to a listed building or its setting is outweighed by the advantages of a
proposed development, the decision-maker must give particular weight to the
desirability of avoiding such harm to give effect to its statutory duties under sections
66 and 72 of the 1990 Act. There is a "strong presumption™ against the grant of
planning permission in such cases.

NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK (NPPF) 2019

5.5 The revised NPPF (2019) sets out the government's planning policies for
England and how these are expected to be applied. It is a material consideration on
the determination of this planning application.

5.6 The planning system should contribute to the achievement of sustainable
development (Paragraph 7). To achieve sustainable development, the planning
system has three overarching objectives; economic, social and environmental
objectives.



Page 11

5.7 Section 10 (Supporting high quality communications) of the NPPF supports high
guality communications and paragraphs 112-116 are considered to be of relevance.
The Framework sets out in paragraph 112 that advanced, high quality and reliable
communications is essential for economic growth and social well-being. Planning
decisions should support the expansion of electronic communications network.
Further, paragraph 113 states that the number of radio and electronic
communications masts, and the sites for such installations, should be kept to a
minimum consistent with the needs of consumers, the efficient cooperation of the
network and providing reasonable capacity for future expansion.

5.8 Section 16 (Conserving and enhancing the historic environment) states that
when considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance of a
designated heritage asset with great weight given to the asset's conservation; the
more important the asset, the greater the weight should be. This is irrespective of
whether any potential harm amounts to substantial harm, total loss or less than
substantial harm to its significance.

5.9 Paragraph 196 of the framework states that where a proposal will lead to less
than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm
should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal.

PUBLICATION DRAFT LOCAL PLAN (2018)

5.10 The Publication Draft City of York Local Plan 2018 ('2018 Draft Plan’) was
submitted for examination on 25 May 2018. Phase 1 of the hearings into the
examination of the Local Plan took place in December 2019. In accordance with
paragraph 48 of the NPPF the Draft Plan policies can be afforded weight according
to:

-The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation,
the greater the weight that may be given);

- The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and
- The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the
policies in the previous NPPF published in March 2012. (NB: Under transitional
arrangements plans submitted for examination before 24 January 2019 will be
assessed against the 2012 NPPF).

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL LOCAL PLAN (2005)

5.11 The Development Control Local Plan (DCLP) was approved for development
management purposes in April 2005. Whilst the DCLP does not form part of the
statutory development plan, its policies are considered to be capable of being
material considerations in the determination of planning applications where policies
relevant to the application are consistent with those in the NPPF although they can
be afforded very little weight.



Page 12

ASSESSMENT

Impact upon the character and appearance of the conservation area and setting of
neighbouring listed buildings

5.12 The applicant has made substantial changes to the amount of equipment
proposed on the roof of this building since the previously refused application. The
number of apertures (containing a single antenna within its casing) previously
proposed was 12 in total and this scheme has reduced this amount by half (6 in
total). The apertures however will be higher than the existing antennas by 1.7m (the
existing antennas measure 3.4m from roof level and the proposed aperture
measures 5.1m). The apertures will be grouped in two and positioned in the same
locations as the existing single pole antennas on the roof (northern and southern
ends and a central position). Other associated equipment is reduced from the
previous scheme, with an existing dish retained.

5.13 Additionally, the applicant has set out that the amount of apertures and
ancillary equipment is the minimum required to provide 5G coverage to the
surrounding area; any decrease in antenna height would result in a reduced
coverage to such an extent that a new base station would be required.

5.14 The site sits with the Character Area 22: Railway Area of the York Central
Historic Core Conservation Area. The character of this area has been influenced by
the railway and associated engineering functions as well as former areas of
industrial riverside that accommodated warehousing. The northern edge of the
area, where the application site is situated, is bounded by the riverside walk and
North Street which is included in this area because of the historic activities and form
that differentiate them from Micklegate and Bridge Street (located within Character
Area 21: Micklegate). The Central Historic Core Conservation Area Appraisal (page
409) identifies the Park Inn Hotel as a detractor from the character and appearance
of the Conservation Area as a result of its height, mass and design, in particular
from views of the river and its setting. The Appraisal comments that “Views and
building heights matter in York. The quantity and quality of views, often inextricably
linked to the absence of tall modern buildings, is one of the most important, most
precious and most fragile components of the city's historic townscape” (p.63).

5.15 The site is situated between two main bridges providing access over the River
Ouse in York, Lendal Bridge to the north and Ouse Bridge to the south. The
Conservation Area appraisal identifies that the view from Lendal Bridge downstream
(south eastern direction) is a key view (Ref: 23) providing a dynamic panoramic
view. It is considered that there is a clear view of the Park Inn building along with
the existing 2no. antennas positioned along the north eastern edge of the roof.
However whilst the existing antennas and ancillary equipment are visible their
intrusive effect is limited because of their singular form with slim dimension



Page 13

5.16 The current proposal represents a significant reduction in the quantity and
bulkiness of the equipment when compared to the refused scheme; the apertures
are more slim-like in nature. However, when compared to the existing
telecommunication equipment they are taller and even with the bulkiness of the
apertures reduced, they would still remain visible within views, and result in a
greater harm to the character and appearance of the York Central Historic Core
Conservation Area.

5.17 The impact of new telecommunications installation is assessed to result in
harm to the character and appearance of the conservation area, albeit less than
substantial harm and at the lower end of this spectrum. As less than substantial
harm is identified, there is a requirement to weigh the application against the public
benefits of the proposal, in line with paragraph 196 of the NPPF. The public benefits
of the proposal, mostly relate to being an economic and social objective, in line with
paragraph 8 of the Framework. That is to help build a strong, responsive and
competitive economy and to support strong, vibrant and healthy communities that
support communities’ health, social and cultural well-being. It states further in
paragraph 112 (Section 10 ‘Supporting high quality communications’) that
advanced, high quality and reliable communications infrastructure is essential for
economic growth and social well-being.

5.18 Given that the level of harm has been identified as being ‘less than substantial’
and at the lower end of this spectrum, the public benefits of the proposal outlined
above are considered to outweigh the level of harm upon the significance of this part
of the conservation area.

5.19 The impact of the proposed equipment upon the setting of listed buildings is
assessed as principally being where those buildings are seen within the same
sightline as the hotel and where the equipment proposed would compete visually
with the listed building. This is particularly the case with regards to buildings that
punctuate the skyline, including the Minster (Grade 1) viewed from the city walls; the
spire of All Saints North Street (Grade 1) viewed from Lendal Bridge and the river
frontage; the clock tower of the Magistrates’ Court (Grade 2) viewed from Lendal
Bridge and the roofline of St John’s Church Micklegate (Grade 2*) viewed from the
Micklegate/Bridge Street junction. As detailed above, the amendments to the
detailed design of the proposed installations including the bulkiness and the number
of apertures and its single antenna across the roofscape has significantly reduced
the visual impact of the equipment in views of these buildings. The visual harm
arising from the telecommunications equipment has been sufficiently mitigated and
the setting to these listed buildings, both individually and cumulatively would be
preserved, in line with the requirements of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

Ecology Impacts




Page 14

5.20 Objections have been raised to the possible impact the telecommunications
equipment may have on wildlife. The LPA is unaware of any studies or research on
the impacts on wildlife from 5G networks that provide any robust advice or scientific
information for use in the decision making process. Tolerance levels of
electromagnetic radiation have not been determined and therefore it is not
considered possible within the planning process to assess if proposals for
telecommunication masts would have a significant impact on biodiversity.

Health Considerations

5.21 An objector cites that the ICNIRP certificate is invalid as it does not contain a
valid statement of compliance with ICNIRP guidelines. Paragraph 115 b) of the
Framework sets out that applications for electronic communications should be
supported by the necessary evidence and for applications involving additions to a
mast or base station this includes a statement that self-certifies that the cumulative
exposure, when operational will not exceed International Commission guidelines on
non-ionising radiation protection. The application is supported by an ICNIRP
certificate confirming that the site is within the ICNIRP guidelines and the applicant
has also provided a statement that confirms that all technologies existing and
proposed have been captured as part of the ICNIRP assessment of the site.

5.22 The application is therefore considered to be in full compliance with the
requirements of the ICNIRP Public Exposure Guidelines on radio frequency. As
such, it is deemed acceptable in terms of health-related issues. NPPF para.116
states that local planning authorities must determine applications on planning
grounds only and should not set health safeguards different from the International
Commission guidelines for public exposure.

6.0 CONCLUSION

6.1 The Park Inn Hotel is an existing site for telecommunications equipment, which
provides 3 existing antennas. It is acknowledged that the proposals to upgrade the
equipment to provide 5G coverage will result in a greater level of visual impact; the
numbers of antennas to be provided will increase to 6 (with one antenna contained
within the aperture casing), increase the bulkiness of the equipment as well as these
being taller structures than those in situ on the building. Whilst the equipment would
still be visible, they are designed in a way to be less visually intrusive within views.
Careful consideration has been given to the statutory duties with regard to
designated heritage assets. Whilst the proposal would result in harm to the
designated heritage assets, this harm is assessed as being less than substantial.
The application has demonstrated that there are public benefits of the proposal,
notably compliance with Section 10 of the National Planning Policy Framework,
which supports high quality communications and which further supports social and



Page 15

economic objectives which are considered to outweigh the less than substantial
harm identified to heritage assets.

6.2 The application satisfies the requirements of the ICNIRP Public Exposure
Guidelines on radio frequency and NPPF paragraph 116.

6.3 It is considered that the proposed scheme would not have an adverse impact
that would significantly and demonstrably outweigh its benefits when assessed
against the policies in the NPPF taken as a whole, taking into account the details of
the scheme and any material planning considerations. It is considered that the
NPPF and policies C1, D1, D4 and D5 of the Publication Draft Local Plan (2018)
and GP1, GP18, GP20 and HE3 of the Development Control Local Plan (2005) are
satisfied

7.0 RECOMMENDATION: Approve
1 TIME2 Development start within three years

2  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following plans:-

701804 _YORO033 96150 Y0O0262 MO002 Rev C 215 Max Configuration Site Plan

701804 _YORO033 96150 Y0O0262 MO002 Rev C 265 Max Configuration Elevation A
701804 _YORO033 96150 Y0O0262_ MO002 Rev C 266 Max Configuration Elevation B
701804 _YORO033 96150 Y00262_ MO002 Rev C 267 Max Configuration Elevation C
701804 _YORO033 96150 Y00262_ MO002 Rev C 268 Max Configuration Elevation D

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried
out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority.

3 On completion of the works the existing telecommunication antenna and any
ancillary equipment shall be removed from site in accordance with the submitted
plans.

Reason: In order to reduce the amount of unnecessary equipment to the site in the
interests of the character of the conservation area

4 All new telecommunications equipment shall be painted light grey.

Reason: In the interest of visual amenity and to preserve the character and
appearance of the York Central Historic Core Conservation Area and in accordance
with policies D1, D4, D11 and C1 of the City of York Council Publication Draft Local
Plan (2018) and GP1, GP18, GP20 and HES3 of the City of York Council's
Development Control Local Plan (2005).



Page 16

8.0 INFORMATIVES:
Notes to Applicant

1. STATEMENT OF THE COUNCIL'S POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE APPROACH

In considering the application, the Local Planning Authority has implemented the
requirements set out within the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 38)
in seeking solutions to problems identified during the processing of the application.
The Local Planning Authority took the following steps in order to achieve a positive
outcome:

- amended the number and design of the apertures.
Contact details:

Case Officer:  Lindsay Jenkins
Tel No: 01904 554575



Page 17

Park Inn, North Street, York
20/01031/FUL

GIS by ESRI (UK) |§

5

Olse ridge

)

"(_ Z
ST T

A‘
“"T 17

0 =
m  MICKCEGATE

Scale: 1:1276

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission

Organisation Clty of York Council
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown

Copyright 2000. Department |Economy & Place

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may . .

lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Comments Site Location Plan
Date 16 November 2020

SLA Number

Produced using ESRI (UK)'s MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com




This page is intentionally left blank



CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Area Planning Sub-Committee

20/01031/FUL
Telecommunications Mast, Park Inn, North Street

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 25 November 2020

6T obed



W18

] -
wa | oo [ £ A W MM UHLESS HOTID.
wiit || 130
w || zar
Existing roof plan
‘\-.--‘/ 3 EXIETING MEML 1 im HIGH
mwnﬁnumm \ \ FREESTAMDING HANDRAIL
ESIETING MEML OUTLIKE OF EQUIPHENT CABIH AT :ﬁ:'::"::;;r;’_&'?ﬂ ’:"”‘N“
PLANT ROON LEVEL . -
Ay GROUND LEVEL
ExEETIHE MBHL 8o RftH INSTALLED O REAR ODZe A0
OF ANTENNA SUPPORT POLE BELOW
MOLIHTING BRACKET
%
hY EX0STING MENL CABLE TRAY FNED
ESIETING MBML 1hs. BOB, EXIETING 1hs TO WRLL BELOW PARAPET
363 RRtH INSTALLED \
o = — —
EXSETIHG MBHL CABLE TRAY FRED TOWALL ¢ woon | Bk Tk | Pancing | G
HELOW PARKPET '\ T
\. \ EXIETING MEML 1. 15 HIZH | e e RATR A i
EXETIHG ACCEEE HATCH AND FRERITAMDIE): HRNDRAL ‘_‘“-ﬁ — — —
FEEDER GLAND \ MO | MEKL Tan | Pansing | B
% .
=] R —
EXSETIHG MBHL 140, BOB AND 18, 3382 RRH R, PLANTROOM LEVEL :ﬁ:l'_..':; :'f:wr R ARG R, s R e e rrerTEr o
FIEED TO HARDRAL Sl 4 80w AGL Mg | MERL Tas | Pansing | A
N, L T
f T |8 vy, | Funtivin- ML RN
! [usa
\ EXJETING MBNL 3003 DiEH —
|
\ [\ e =
EXSETIHG MBHL 1Mo, ATRAS1553 8-PORT EX0STING MENL 1he. ATRAGLERD &-PORT r— Fer

ANTENNA WOUNTED Ok SURRGRT MOLE

N

\ W
EXEETIHG MBKL 1Mo, & PORT ARTERMA A

MOUNTED O SUPPORT POLE

0z abed

ANTERMA WOUKTED ON SUPPORT POLE
\& NN == i
\‘\ [T ——
N Pl Thiss Towsl, Shilh Sndd, Bl FS 1 BE
: a\ >S\ ot Crashart & Fradal Corkacas
sy - Mg Conmutants Liried

EXETING MEML 1Mo +-PORT ANTENNS
E

MOUNTED 08 SUBFORT B
o T 5 Fanfiakl ol Ssgow,
NN N e
S EXSTING MENL DEMARCATION HANDRAIL mno :x 41 BEE B8
AR

I1_

- A
- EXEETIHG MBKL 1 tn HIGH
- FREESTANDING HAMDAL

% N\ -
a4 s s EXIETING MEML DEWARCATION CHAN
EY — F/, ’/}\ e PARK INN HOTEL
- \ ,/\ == 701304
= e
\ e
PARK INM HOTEL,
1 Y ELEVATION - KORTH STREET YORK,
‘\.\ \ 5, YORK,

i ' . " ¥O1 6JF
7 \ v L rer-t \

- \-\ ‘xt o T 100 EXISTING SITE PLAN

\ .'. .—“--_ -P'P-‘-

— ___,"' \' l'\.l |IlI --—.f-_-:'-f-_--lll\ '\"" -_P__-"- [Fr— TaA

—1 '.\ A L] Y e Y\ \ = -
— \ x.\ \\ o \\ - GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

\ - VY - Lo L on o ot

I; EXISTING SITE PLAN 28150 YORD23 ¥O0262

F it b L | e

3 ' 1am = ' TOHED4_YORI3E S6150_YOOZEZ_MOOZ rl::

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 25 November 2020 2



Wi

s | V57| omem:
Y
" EAEE W MM UNLTES HOTID.
|| 13
wtt || zaer
ALL EQUAPHIENT SHOWH M ORANGE ARE
. . .
ExsSTING MBHL Wo. BOB AND 18, 3952
XI I V I RAH FIZED TO HAaMDREIL EXISTIMG MENL 3050 DISH
EXISTIRG MBHL 1Ho_ &-PORT ANTENHA MOUNTED EXIETING MERL 1H3. ATRASIASS A-RORT ANTENKE
OH SUPPORT POLE HOUNTED OH SUPPORT POLE
EXSSTING MBKL 1 bn HKHH FREESTANDING HAMDRAL EXITIG MERL 1ha. BOB AKD Wa 3385RAH
EXETING ACCESS HATCH TO ROOF PEOED TV R AL
EXISTING HEHL Tha, &-PORT ANTENKA
WOUNTED OM SUPPORT POLE
EXISTIHG MEHL 1Hg, S-PORT ANTENHA
WOUKTED OH SUPPRORT POLE L OF ANTERMA
I || L OF ANTERMA 434 70 AGL
o] A
ROOF LEVEL «33.00m AGL ] o N N | WEI L OF ANTERBUA 20 i A0, el - o e .
. -'-III-'-'-I*H 1 — [0 [ | . _ MO | MEKL Tak Pansing =
= Gan T e
T | T P | st bk S5 L Ak el
—fmi —
ROOR LEVEL 428 Bn winn | kL TaA | Pansing | B
——- — T
[T | e | ol i - B,
""" [ | WS
S
M35 | MBRL TLK | Pansing | &
e
----- = 5 ceciaar | ¥t b - D
b T
=

&)

I

L
i

B e
T Pl Thammes Tomss, S #td, Ao, 01 TR

T¢ abed

Cetign Cowimiart & Fracpal Corkasas

lons ConasRunts Lisied
Cueas House,

= Rerfaid

ek e, Clusgow,

ROOF LEVEL #18 (0 AL mno
- L& ) 10 SEE BED
A
=

403 14 B8 EAE

Y
PARK INM HOTEL

[=" 701804

PARK INM HOTEL,
HORTH STREET ¥YORE,
YORK,

YO 6JF

PP LEVEL +7.50m AGL

|| A T

NENENER

=] “

150 EXISTING ELEVATION

[t

......... . l =1 m:: . TEA
" i " GEMERAL ARRANGEMENT

EXISTING ELEVATICN 28150 YE.HEII.]ES I Y022

A e i

1:200 - ' TOHED4_YOADI: 85150_YOOIE2_MO02

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 25 November 2020



As proposed roof plan

Wi
Agui e | 43880 | Puowh HOTES
o | ey | s
- P 2 rx] 5 - 8. ALLCIMDHEICRS M MM UHLESS OTHERWIST HOTED.
= - ‘_.a\v,_.-"' i) \\ o | e
- L ' \, BT T o | ] |FULL STRUCTURAL SURVEY AND CALCULATIONS
- ELEVATION D /#/’ N ‘\ % T [ma | |REGUIRES To SOMPRM PROPOSED DESGH
- Y x| SCLUTICH
[=] T His

-~ Y
o ,
e . AN [ProPosE ane. areRTURES AT 37.00m

| Y MEAK BEARING OF I & 24e. Hals
S A \ WOLNTED G4 PROPOSED OGP POO
N, ‘-.%‘
AN W, [PRESPGAED S CABLE WARAGENENT|
_$' REUND LEVEL \.\\
IlC:!IIJhI.
‘\\
\x \\-\
hY 1\\\
p s mr =3
™, x\\ G
x\ Y ‘\
AN

x_\ -\ '\ —— | ;

ENSTIHNG MBML CABLE TRAY MXED TO WaLL \

BELOW PARAFET \ '\.\\ \ LY

", ESTING MEML 1.9 HGH
\'\. ENSTiNG M:hﬁﬁ‘b‘f_’l‘ ﬂh-l..l.}\\'\ \ \\ r"El-s-mmhu L | m | il
\x FEEDER GLAND \.1L \‘\
\ \ \
WSV NEN e RS, 3 BCR. l PLANTROCH LEVEL e
x ETAL LED £ PRORCAED ROCP POD \/ R o4 e

i Bt b ]
MENL o e

FROPOSED s, APBRTURES AT 3T 00w
MOUNTED OH PROPOSED ROOF POD |‘._‘ \\
\ \
LY
AN
e %
hY
N
Y Y
% ELEVATION A W
1','“ s [ /}‘:-\‘
i f ‘__A\
1
Y \{ .-"'J?-' -'"'}\.1
! Lt
S -
! GROUND LEVEL 'Y = -~
. ubin AGL \}‘-\ #&____.__'\\ {:}_J-’f' \T:\ T
AN . AT
— o Y Y e W o ‘
T " Voo - ELEVATIONC t
- ! \ \ ! - T

PROPOSED MWAX COMNFIGURATION SITE PLAN

Cmtign Coinirt & Fracipal Conimmar
M CormcRant Linied

Coraeas Houle,
3 Renfiakd Swea, Shsgow,
L2 Rt

MONO  .ouemn

a3 140 66 BAE1

i RO COM LIRSt Com
5 Hawa:
PARK INM HOTEL
= 701804
hddrem:

PARK INM HOTEL,
RORTH STREET YORK,
TORK,

O 6F

=
215 MAX CONFIGURATION SITE PLAN

[t

TaA
GENERAL ARRANGEMENT
T TR ]

26150 YOR033 YO0262

L 1400 = o

THED4_YORODIE_S55150_YOO2ZE2 MO0z [+

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 25 November 2020

22 abed



As Proposed elevation

Wia

WOTEE

LML W MM UHLESS

NOTE:

FUILL STRIMCTURAL SURWVEY AND CALCULATIONS
EXISTIRG MEHL 1.1 HIGH
FREESTAKDING HAMDRAIL

R
[e{efels]| |2

RECUARED TO CONFRM PROPOSED DESIGH
SOLUTICN

___________ 777

TG 1ha, NEML 2008 DISH FIED ON EXJSTING
SUPPORT POLE

ﬁnﬂnnnﬂ

T = = EE] ETET =1
o -t I"'J"'J =] L=l L=l i) Ll L) Py I ............
— =i

PROPOSED MAX CONFIGURATION ELEVATION A

& 1200 -

=T — —

i | MBEKL Tas Pransing -}

=

] e

s | miwL TaL | Fanting | B

= TR T T

[ | W Warimar | Sl i - Bl Addind

= W

e s

e | minL TaL | Faning | a

= T [T

— & Eeeive |

—F—

T
[re— r——
=== feemer i
:— L .
F—— R
= T P

e w—

T P, T T, Blin W inad, Mg, 1 T8

[Cetin Cemuitart & Fratial Cortmmas
Men: Cormclunts Lifrled
Curasas House,
8 Ranfiakl Swea, Olsgow,
L4 111}
MONO ..
E 44 (39 141 558 B8E1

Lt
S HaTe:
PARK INN HOTEL
-
= 701804
Addrem
DARK INN HOTEL,
NORTH STREET YORK,
YORK,
YOl 6JF

=
265 MAX CONFIGURATION ELEVATION A

=
TAA

GEMNERAL ARRANGEMENT

28150 | YORD33 | Y0262

Fnﬂuu
THE04_YOROIZ_S5150_YOOI62_MO02 [

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 25 November 2020

ez abed



Vi

vz abed

gt | anmes | ware | HOTEE
© | e | meaa
T e MM UNLESS
SRS | v | e | [NOTE
BT o | m FULL STRUCTURAL SURVEY AND CALCLLATIONS
EXETING MEML 1. 1/ HIGH Ee | av | s | |REQUIRED TO OONFRE PROPOSED DESIGH
FREESTANDING HAKDRAIL Tl | e | m
WEFL NEW o, R0, He, BOEW 6 RN RN T
ddo. ACTIVE ROUTERS TO BE
As proposed south —
p p BN MEW Bo. R, Jhe. BOB & [PROPOSED o APERTURES AT 57.00m
aie. ACTIVE ROUTERS TO BE | WEAN BEARING OF 1HI" dhds. MbA® 0N
elevation — e
R e T TERM CF APERTURES #35.10m AGL
PFROPOSED ROOF FOD AL
e OF AERTL w3 Db AL
= PROPOSED RELOCATION OF SECTION OF
ROGF LEVEL +35.00m &0L L
weg Pk | &
—
ROOF _E\IEE I'Iyﬂﬁr B —
- ’ w1 Panng | B
=
;’:ﬁ!rl;nl-i 'IP&:IIN. 30048 DISH FINED 0N EX]STIMNG: —
\ \ g Princing | A
=
[ |
AN ==
Py
e B T
m e
S P, T T, Wi i s, B 1 T
Cmaign Comulart & Fradpal Coriagas
Mens Conacants Lieied
I \ \ 5 Panfak Suea Slasgow,
= # L -3 110)
MONO ... e
£ a4 (3} 140 568 BAE1
.
ROOF LEVEL #11.55m AL o an:
#11 AL
- e \ \ PAREK INN HOTEL
=
= 701804
RGP LEVEL o7 St AGL e
- PARK INM HOTEL,
L | ] | i Hmmrﬂ‘um‘ummm" MORTH STREET ¥ORK,
YORK,
H YO 6JF
- 267 MAX CONFIGURATION ELEVATION C
— CRCLIND LEVEL [ TEA
= GEMERAL ARRAMGEMENT
T TR T
!— PROPOSED MAX CONFIGURATION ELEVATION © ANE CAPACITY BY SECTOR oB150 YORD23 vOO2a2
—
E A 1 B 1 [+]
'; & 4200 = [ ol TN ) TOME04_YORDZE_S51S0_YOOIE2 002 [+

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 25 November 2020 6



As proposed north elevation

wim

2o APERTURES AT 37 00m
MEAN SEAR|KG OF 0
MBRL R, B0 ﬂl
HEW Bhin. e &
ROUTERS TO BE
IHSTALLED ON PROPOSED ROOF POD 'q
ROOF LEVEL &33.50m AGL

FO0F LEVEL 420 8m AGL
—

ROCF LEVEL +7 50m AL
.

agivass | anae || shams | HOTES:
w || g | ps
] —T =] A WM UHLESS HOTED
T | v s | [MOTE
% ar | ] mmnggmmwmm
EXISTiRG MEBHL 1.1r HIGH i | o | (WECAMRED 7O COMMRE FRCRCHED
H:tsu—huﬂ:ﬂ.r.l':uul. T [ ow | m | LBERUTIEN
WBAL NEW B0s. AT, ho BOBYE M=N ETE TN
|umwmu
IMSTALLED O PROPMOSED ROOF ROD.
PROPOSED This. APERTURES AT $7.00m
|ma&mmn|=ur.hmui
PROPOSED ROOF POD
TOF OF APERTURES «18 10m AGL
[~ X
M_tl-_ﬂﬂ&-l_m-_iﬂ
e panckg | ©
=]
= — —
[ 2l Pransing | B
m
EXJETING 1ha, MBMNL 3008 DISH FIED ON EXJSTING =
SUPPORT POLE e ol
[ | antig | A
=
—
[ ——
oy
it
P
% et oy
P B 10

FOOP LEVEL #11.00m &5L

GROUND LEVEL
-

PROPOSED MAX CONFIGURATION ELEVATION D

® 4300 - '

B
T Pl Thme T, Bl Winad, Wi, 01 3

Cotign Comtint & Fracpal Corinmas
Wone Conitants Linied
Cunsas Houss,
& Renflakd Soeat,
* il s,

mono

L ) 0 BEE BAED
F 84 000 140 858 A&

Lo
S Hama:
PARK INM HOTEL
=
= 701804
dechirmen

PARK INM HOTEL,
HORTH STREET YORE,
YORK,

YO 6JF

=
258 MAX CONFIGURATION ELEVATION D

[t

TaA
GENERAL ARRAMGEMEMNT
26150 YORD33 Yo0za2

THMED4_YDROIZ 5150 YOO26e2 MOOZ rl:

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 25 November 2020

Gz abed



View of Park Inn Hotel from Lendal Bridge

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 25 November 2020

9¢ abed



View of Park Inn Hotel from northern bank of River Ouse (adjacent
Pitcher and Piano)

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 25 November 2020

/¢ abed



View of Park Inn Hotel from Ouse Bridge

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 25 November 2020

10

gz abed



Page 29 Agenda Item 4b
COMMITTEE REPORT

Date: 25 November 2020  Ward: Osbaldwick And Derwent

Team: East Area Parish: Osbaldwick Parish
Council

Reference: 20/00338/FUL

Application at: 44 Tranby Avenue Osbaldwick York YO10 3NJ

For: Two storey side extension

By: Mr Nicolai Krasnov

Application Type: Full Application

Target Date: 30 November 2020

Recommendation: Householder Approval

1.0 PROPOSAL

1.1 This application seeks permission for the erection of a two storey extension to
the side of a two storey detached dwelling in Osbaldwick.

1.2 This application has been called in by ClIr. Warters for consideration by the
planning committee on the grounds of impact upon neighbour amenity and issues
arising from the use of the plot as a HMO.

1.3 Property History:

e 17/02432/FUL — Permission was granted for the change of use of the dwelling
from use class C3 to a House in Multiple Occupation (use class C4).

e 17/01949/0OUT — An outline application was made for the erection of 1no.
dwelling in the same part of the curtilage that the proposed side extension
would occupy. This application was refused and the decision was upheld on
appeal.

2.0 POLICY CONTEXT

City of York Publication Draft Local Plan 2018

D1 — Placemaking
D11 — Extensions and Alterations to Existing Buildings



Page 30

2.1 The 2018 Draft Plan was submitted for examination on 25 May 2018. Phase 1 of
the hearings into the examination of the Local Plan took place in December 2019. In
accordance with paragraph 48 of the NPPF the Draft Plan policies can be afforded
weight according to:

e The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the
preparation, the greater the weight that may be given);

e The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given);
and

e The degree of conformity of the relevant policies in the emerging plan with
policies in the previous NPPF (published March 2012).

Draft Development Control Local Plan 2005

GP1 — Design
H7 — Residential Extensions

2.2 The Development Control Local Plan (DCLP) was approved for development
control purposes in April 2005. For decision making, its policies are material
considerations when they are in accordance with the NPPF although it is considered
that their weight is very limited.

3.0 CONSULTATIONS

Osbaldwick Parish Council

3.2 Obiject to the proposals on the following grounds:

e Visual amenity — the proposal would unbalance the existing semi-detached
property and detract from the spatial characteristics of the host corner plot.

e Neighbour amenity — the scheme would lead to a loss of light and privacy for the
neighbour at no.19 Bedale Avenue.

¢ HMO use — the scheme would have a detrimental impact on the surrounding area
in terms of noise disturbance, waste storage, and parking issues.

4.0 REPRESENTATIONS

Application Reference Number: 20/00338/FUL Item No:
Page 2 of 8



Page 31

Councillor Warters

3.1 Councillor Warters objects on the following grounds:

¢ Visual amenity — the proposal would have a harmful impact on the spatial
relationship of the host corner property with other corner plots in the area.

e Neighbour amenity — the scheme would cause an undue loss of privacy by
overlooking neighbouring properties, as well as having an undue impact on levels
of light and outlook.

e HMO use — the additional bedrooms at the property would lead to detrimental
effects on the wider area including noise, waste storage and disposal and
parking.

Neighbours and Publicity

4.1 One letter of objection was received. The following concerns were raised:

e HMO use — the proposals would escalate existing issues associated with the use
of the property as an HMO, including noise disturbance and waste storage.

5.0 APPRAISAL
KEY ISSUES

5.1 Impact on the dwelling and character of the surrounding area; impact on
neighbour amenity.

POLICY CONTEXT

5.2 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) February 2019 sets out the
Government's overarching planning policies, and at its heart is a presumption in
favour of sustainable development. It is a material consideration in the determination
of this planning application.

Application Reference Number: 20/00338/FUL Item No:
Page 3 of 8



Page 32

5.3 Paragraph 38 of the NPPF (Chapter 4, ‘Decision-Making’) decision-makers at
every level should seek to approve applications for sustainable development where
possible.

5.4 Paragraph 127 (NPPF Chapter 12, ‘Achieving Well-Designed Places’) states
that planning policies and decisions should ensure that developments will achieve a
number of aims, including:

¢ that they will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for
the short term but over the lifetime of the development;

¢ that they will be visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and
appropriate and effective landscaping;

¢ that they are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding
built environment and landscape setting;

e that they will help create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and
promote health and well-being with a high standard of amenity for existing and
future users.

5.5 The NPPF also places great importance on good design. Paragraph 128 says
that design quality should be considered throughout the evolution and assessment
of individual proposals. Paragraph 130 says that permission should be refused for
development of poor design that fails to take the opportunities available for
improving the character and quality of an area and the way it functions, taking into
account any local design standards or style guides in plans or supplementary
planning documents.

2018 Draft Local Plan

5.6 Policy D1 (Placemaking) of the 2018 Draft Plan seeks development proposals
to improve poor existing urban and natural environments, enhance York's special
qualities, better reveal the historic environment and protect the amenity of
neighbouring residents. Development proposals that fail to make a positive
contribution to the city or cause damage to the character and quality of an area, or
the amenity of neighbours will be refused.

5.7 Policy D11 (Extensions and Alterations to Existing Buildings) states that
proposals to extend, alter or add to existing buildings will be supported where the

Application Reference Number: 20/00338/FUL Item No:
Page 4 of 8



Page 33

design responds positively to its immediate architectural context, local character and
history in terms of the use of materials, detailing, scale, proportion, landscape and
space between buildings. Proposals should also sustain the significance of a
heritage asset, positively contribute to the site's setting, protect the amenity of
current and neighbouring occupiers, contribute to the function of the area and
protect and incorporate trees.

2005 Development Control Local Plan

5.8 DCLP policy GP1 states that, with respect to Design, development proposals
will be expected to (i) respect or enhance the local environment; (ii) be of a density,
layout, scale, mass and design that is compatible with neighbouring buildings,
spaces and the character of the area, using appropriate building materials; (iii) avoid
the loss of open spaces, important gaps within development, vegetation, water
features and other features that contribute to the quality of the local environment;
(iv) retain, enhance and/or create urban spaces, public views, skyline, landmarks,
the rural character and setting of villages and other townscape features which make
a significant contribution to the character of the area, and take opportunities to
reveal such features to public view; and (v) ensure that residents living nearby are
not unduly affected by noise, disturbance, overlooking, overshadowing or dominated
by overbearing structures.

5.9 Draft Local Plan Policy H7 concerns Residential Extensions, and states that
residential extensions will be permitted where (i) the design and materials are
sympathetic to the main dwelling and the locality of the development; (ii) the design
and scale are appropriate in relation the main building; (iii) there is no adverse effect
on neighbour amenity; (iv) proposals respect the spaces between dwellings; and (v)
the proposed extension does not result in an unacceptable reduction in private
amenity space within the curtilage of the dwelling.

House Extensions and Alterations SPD (2012)

5.10 The Supplementary Planning Document_provides guidance relating to such

issues as privacy, overshadowing, oppressiveness and general amenity as well as

advice which is specific to the design and size of particular types of extensions,

alterations and detached buildings. A basic principle of this guidance is that any

extension should normally be in keeping with the appearance, scale, design and

character of both the existing dwelling and the road/street-scene it is located on.
Application Reference Number: 20/00338/FUL Item No:

Page 5 of 8



Page 34
Furthermore, proposals should not unduly affect neighbouring amenity with
particular regard to privacy, overshadowing and loss of light, over-dominance and
loss of outlook.

ASSESSMENT

Impact on the dwelling and character of the surrounding area

5.11 The proposed addition has been reduced in width so as to not extend
significantly beyond the building line of Baydale Avenue. The extension is set down
from the existing roof-line and set back from the existing front elevation as required
by paragraph 12.3 and 12.5 of the SPD. As amended, it would not be considered to
have an undue impact on the visual amenity of the surrounding streetscene, being
set well back from the boundaries with either highway. The extension would be of a
reasonable width and clearly subservient to the main house, and would therefore not
be considered to have any undue impact on the visual amenity of the host dwelling.

Impact on neighbour amenity

5.12 lItis not considered that the proposed extension would have any undue impact
on the amenity of any nearby neighbours. The addition would be well distanced from
the side boundary of no.19 Baysdale Avenue and would not be considered to have
any undue impact on sunlight/daylight or outlook enjoyed to the front, side or rear of
the neighbouring house. The new bedroom windows on the rear elevation would
look towards onto the side elevation of no.19 and would have little additional impact
in terms of privacy and overlooking.

HMO issues

5.13 The property is in use as a HMO (use class C4), having been granted
permission for change of use in 2017. The “as existing” drawings show 4 bedrooms.
Use class C4 would allow up to 6 residents. The current application is for an
extension and shows 5 rooms titled “bedroom.” Other rooms could potentially be
used as bedrooms subject to the limitation of the use class.

5.14 The 2017 change of use report referenced the “long front drive, which could
easily accommodate 3.no vehicles” and the unrestricted off-road parking on both

Tranby Avenue and Baysdale Avenue. The proposal would retain 2 car parking
Application Reference Number: 20/00338/FUL Item No:

Page 6 of 8



Page 35

spaces on site. Car parking standards set a maximum of 3 spaces for a 6 bed
HMO. It is not considered that the proposed extension would unacceptably reduce
the available space for car parking that currently exists at the site, however a
condition is recommended to require the submission of details demonstrating the
provision of an additional car parking space. Adequate space is available for refuse
storage and cycle storage. It should be noted that separate planning permission
would have to be sought for a change of use from Class C4 to Sui Generis, should
the applicant intend for the occupancy of the dwelling to exceed the maximum
threshold for a C4 HMO’ (7 or more people).

6.0 CONCLUSION

6.1 The proposal is considered to be acceptable in terms of its impact on the
streetscene and residential amenity. It would comply with National Planning Policy
Framework (2019), policies D1 and D11 of the City of York Publication Draft Local
Plan 2018, policies GP1 and H7 of the 2005 City of York Draft Local Plan, and
advice contained within Supplementary Planning Document 'House Extensions and
Alterations' (Dec. 2012).

7.0 RECOMMENDATION: Householder Approval
1 TIME2 Development start within three years

2  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following plans:-

Drawing No. Tranby EL5 (Received 30th October 2020) - Proposed Elevations &
Floor Plans

Drawing No. Tranby BL4 (Received 17th July 2020) - Block Plan

Drawing No. Tranby RF2 (Received 17th July 2020) - Proposed Roof Plan

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried
out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority.

3 VISQ1 Matching materials

4 Prior to the occupation of the extension details of a secure and enclosed cycle
parking area to provide a total of 6 cycles at the premises shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The extension shall not be
occupied until the cycle parking area has been provided within the site in

Application Reference Number: 20/00338/FUL Item No:
Page 7 of 8



Page 36

accordance with such approved details, and these areas shall not be used for any
purpose other than the parking of cycles.

Reason: To promote use of cycles thereby reducing congestion on the adjacent
roads and in the interests of the amenity of neighbours.

5 Before the commencement of the development a scale drawing showing an
additional on-site car parking space accessed from the existing driveway shall be
submitted for the approval of the local planning authority. The additional car parking
space shall be provided in accordance with the approved drawing before the
occupation of any part of the extension.

Reason: In the interests of residential amenity and highway safety.

8.0 INFORMATIVES:
Notes to Applicant

1. STATEMENT OF THE COUNCIL'S POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE APPROACH

In considering the application, the Local Planning Authority has implemented the
requirements set out within the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 38)
in seeking solutions to problems identified during the processing of the application.
The Local Planning Authority took the following steps in order to achieve a positive
outcome:

Sought reductions to the size of the proposed side extension, to protect visual
amenity.

Contact details:
Case Officer: Sam Baker
Tel No: 01904 551718

Application Reference Number: 20/00338/FUL Item No:
Page 8 of 8



Page 37

44 Tranby Avenue Osbaldwick YO10 3NJ

20/00338/FUL




This page is intentionally left blank



“—J"'; CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Area Planning Sub-Committee

20/00338/FUL
44 Tranby Avenue, Osbaldwick

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 25 November 2020

6€ abed



0t abed

= — - --qlll
T |
v\ Lo
| Voo
'\IIII ’F'.-IIL ":- - ___-o-|ll
| W | I"ul
4 — Y \
".\ il.-'-- \ N
\ oA =
f‘fl‘l 1'"-, A
f_"-,l II". Y .
W II".I _#'-_\ II". - —\
II"., = .'Ld--" W )
. /\{ et Y, '-,i
ll. - "
Vo G\ T o
\ \ \ ™ B
I';_::-"'IIA _; \'\./ %
s % 7{%
§ kA
.Ill -\':." )
g ,."' %‘
{ S/
{_/
- e “\ f""'\-\.
LWy
ettt Y /
Bﬁ.ﬁ# ;._. ..qu--____l' ! S
S T
& J"'r \
- Pz v \
,.-'PE““'-» . —_ \ I".,
! g \
ri i 1Y 5
Graphic Scale m Metres
Wo oritical massurensants should ba scaled froem thes drandngs. o 5 1 15 M 15
Tha Beadldar or Contractor should take acteal sise measursments for venification. 1 I wiliehmlnn
The cwnenkip of the site a5 indicated bry 2 red Ens bas been provided by the cliszt
Block Plan Scale Flan Bef
1:500 Tranby-BL4
44 Tranby Avenue, York, YO10 3NJ When plotted A4| Date 17/07/2020




Existing Elevations and
Plans

Side Elevation

Side Elevation

Rear Elevation

- e
= |.='|I o = -.g‘l . .
P
e 4 T
e i
[y _|_ ke Hoeped  MSICH
| —l M al AT RIS
o w[IFH
Had | | | i
[ | il "
v - M#"
Eussibrgg Elewitioro ifid
| h" = ! l ! ] Floor Flana
= = —— ==, == o T Tt 4
[ [ITTRTTH RN R RN
Vaik
YO0 INT
First Floor Plan
. Tk Pan el
Ground Floor Plan Ls rakyEX
When plotted A1 | Dwte S8300

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 25 November 2020

Tt obed



I | == (]
Proposed Elevations and - ‘ e e B
PlanS || — —-:m :._I = . = . f' .__.ﬂ,
B I I
- (| — ! . |: ﬂ_""‘ e L:I:-.-
11 _O
- T - i = [P
- ——']EE | || <‘7 - $_.'_|; )
.hlz:"_pil | =y J . I|| ] =I-|:|,._._I_., L
=5 _ L A =--l¢; T =

Fimst Fl phn‘.\m'.lm}c Shown Red FloorPlan

ok Heenel  MSHCH

] |

Tl (T TEMAS
IR

Fropessd Elevation asd
Flosr Plans

44 Tranby Avende

H 1 E ]
[P VI PO P L e YO0 INT

T el

e Trashy-5L5
Shen plotied A1 | Dute 350803080|

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 25 November 2020 4

2t obed



Roof Plan

Mo critical meammamants kol be scaled from thass drwings.
Tk Budlder or Contmactor shold taks actoal site measureensats for wurification.

Graphic Scale in Metres for 1-:100

a0 1

2 3 4 5

Losatown bus by bnnbsdynsbn dly
Roof Plan Scale Plan Ref
44 Tranby Avenue, York, Y010 3NJ 1100 Tranby-RF2
When plotted A4] Date 17/07/2020

oy abed



Front Elevation

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 25 November 2020

05/03/2020

v abed



Side Elevatiuon

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 25 November 2020

05740342020 st

G abed



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 47 Agenda Item 4c
COMMITTEE REPORT

Date: 25 November 2020  Ward: Hull Road
Team: East Area Parish: Heslington Parish
Council
Reference: 20/00532/REMM
Application at: Land Lying To The North Of Kimberlow Lane Heslington York
For: Reserved matters application for the erection of a children's

nursery with associated vehicle drop off and landscaping
following outline permission 20/01270/OUT for a new university

campus
By: University of York
Application Type: Major Reserved Matters Application
Target Date: 2 December 2020

Recommendation: Approve

1.0 PROPOSAL

THE SITE

1.1 The application site is located at the north-east end of the University of York’s
new Campus East. The site sits on the southern slopes of Kimberlow Hill, to the
north of the internal access road (Kimberlow Lane), to the south of Grimston Bar
Park and Ride and north of York Sports Village. Vehicular access to the site is via
Kimberlow Lane either from the A1079 Hull Road or via Field Lane to the edge of
Badger Hill.

1.2 The site is a greenfield site, roughly rectangular in shape, measuring c1.75ha
in size. Much of the site is cultivated — a ploughed field at the time of the site visits,
but the boundary includes the earth mounds to the west of the field and semi-
improved grassland. To the north is woodland and the Kimberlow Hill parkland and
along the eastern boundary is a public right of way (PRoW) running north south. The
site is sloped with an increase in topography from south to north of c8m. At the top
of the slope, below the woodland, panoramic views can be appreciated across the
new campus, the open agricultural landscape beyond and across to the Wolds to
the east.

1.3 The site is not Green Belt, but is within the ‘existing university campus’, wholly
designated as ‘existing open space’ on the Policies Map (South) in the Publication
Draft Local Plan (February 2018). The Development Control Local Plan (2005)
designates the northern part of the site as ‘open space’ with the lower section of the



Page 48

site within the ‘New University Campus Phase 1 Indicative Boundary’. The site is in
flood zone 1 (low risk of flooding).

PROPOSAL

1.4 The application is a reserved matters application submitted to satisfy condition
2 of 20/01270/FUL to agree reserved matters (appearance, landscaping, layout and
scale) for the erection of a new children’s nursery at the University of York’s
Campus East. The nursery would replace the existing smaller 30 place nursery on
Campus West which is coming to the end of its life, being of modular construction.
The proposed nursery would accommodate a maximum of 103 pre-school age
children (age 0-4) and an additional 44 children in a créche (up to age 10) at any
one time (with up to five cr€che sessions per day); ie. 147 children at one time within
the nursery. The maximum number of staff would be 38 at one time. The nursery
would provide for the childcare needs of staff and students as well as local
communities.

1.5 The new nursery would have a footprint of 1,100 sgm gross floorspace in a
single storey level access building. There would be c800 sgm external play space.
The building would be constructed from buff brick and sections of louvered panels
with a series of pitched, zinc standing seam covered roofs with rooflights. Full height
windows and doors are proposed for the north and south elevations with glazed
canopies and timber louvred screens providing undercover play space in inclement
weather. Revised plans show a naturalistic planting scheme beyond the immediate
free-flow external spaces as a wilderness play space for use by the nursery.

1.6 The proposals would include earthworks to create a level platform within the
site with the fill from the levelling banked to the south to create a steep planted
buffer to Kimberlow Lane. Revised plans show that the woodland to the north now
remains intact.

1.7 Thirty vehicle drop-off spaces for visitors would be provided immediately west
of the building from a new spur off the existing roundabout on Kimberlow Lane with
Lakeside Way. There would be 13 secure undercover cycle parking spaces for staff
in a building also accommodating refuse storage to the rear of the site. Eight
Sheffield stands providing 16 cycle parking spaces for drops will be by the entrance.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

1.8 Outline planning permission for the erection of a campus at Heslington East
was granted by the Secretary of State in 2007 (04/01700/0OUT). All matters of detail
other than the means of access, were reserved for subsequent approval. In 2008



Page 49

outline planning permission was granted to vary the plans condition of the 2007
planning permission (08/00005/0UT) and all of the remaining planning conditions
were carried over to the new permission which was subsequently implemented. In
2015, a further new outline consent was granted 15/02923/OUT, which has most
recently been updated again with a further outline planning permission being
granted which carried over the previous conditions on 16 September 2020 (ref.
20/01270/0OUT). There are a number of relevant conditions attached to this consent:

Condition 2 — requirement for reserved matters approval for the siting, design,
external appearance of buildings and landscaping;

Condition 4 - development to be in accordance with Plan C(i) and the
development footprint within the allocated area to not exceed 23% of that
area.

Condition 5 — restriction to University Uses, including ancillary uses.

Condition 6 — Requirement for an annual traffic survey of traffic travelling to
and from the University through three principal junctions.

Condition 7 — All reserved matters applications for buildings over 500sgm
floorspace to be accompanied by a comparison of predicted traffic flows
related to the University. If the surveys indicate an increase in traffic at the
three junctions of more than 5% then mitigation measures to reduce actual
traffic flows to the predicted levels are required.

Condition 9 — restricts the maximum parking spaces to 1500 total.

Condition 11 — requires reserved matters to be submitted in accordance with
an approved design brief and masterplan.

Condition12 — requires reserved matters applications to be submitted in
accordance with an approved Landscape Design Brief.

1.9 AOD/18/00196 Condition 11 of 15/02923/OUT was approved on 19.10.2018 to
vary the masterplan and subsequently this is the latest version.

2.0 POLICY CONTEXT

2.1 Allocations:

Publication Draft Local Plan (2018)

Existing University Campus



Page 50

Existing Open Space
Public footpath on eastern site boundary
Flood zone 1 (low risk of flooding)

2.2 Policies:

City of York Local Plan Publication Draft (2018)

ED1 University of York

ED3 Campus East

HW4 Childcare Provision

D2 Landscape and Setting

G13 Green Infrastructure Network

G14 Trees and Hedgerows

G15 Protection of Open Space and Playing Fields

CC1 Renewable Energy Generation and Storage

CC2 Sustainable Design and Construction of New Development

City of York Draft Local Plan adopted for Development Control Purposes (2005)

GP1 Design

GP7 Open Space

NE1 Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows
C7 Children’s Nurseries

Heslington Parish Neighbourhood Plan Submission Version (September 2019)

HES: 14 Green infrastructure
HES: 19 University of York

3.0 CONSULTATIONS
INTERNAL

Design, Conservation and Sustainable Development (Landscape)

3.1 Kimberlow Hill presents an identifiable rise in topography resulting from the
underlying York glacial moraine, a distinct feature of local geological significance
lying within the generally flat VVale of York. The combination of the hill, the vegetation
upon it, the openness and absence of built development on its higher gradients plus



Page 51

views from it in all directions provide a distinct sense of place in this locality. This
landscape also provides a setting for the new university campus which emerges
from its lower slopes and extends across the flat vale.

3.2 Kimberlow Hill is an important piece of green infrastructure; it is accessible to
the public and this one of the public benefits of the campus development. The vast
majority of the land to the north of the service road retains the integrity of Kimberlow
Hill. This is threatened by incremental changes to the original design concept and
the proposed nursery results in further incremental erosion of the green
infrastructure and integrity of Kimberlow Hill, and Diamond Wood, and the setting of
Campus East, which have already been compromised by recent developments. Any
development within this approximate location should be accommodated without
further harm to the existing landscape framework. The proposed development does
not achieve this basic requirement. The principle of development in this location is
objected due to the substantial harm to the completeness of the landscape. If the
nursery is to be supported, it should be at the forfeit of the car park to the west that
is allocated within the approved masterplan so as not to result in further erosion of
this valuable and otherwise clearly defined piece of green infrastructure.

3.3 Providing further comment on the revised plans and detailed landscape
scheme, the officer welcomes the confirmation that the hedgerow and woodland
now appear to remain intact. The native planting, new hedgerows and gapping up of
the boundary to the PRoW are supported. Generally the landscaping proposals are
supported although some improvements are proposed. Should the application be
approved despite the strong objection to the principle of the development in this
location, two conditions are advised to agree landscape details and to provide an
arboricultural method statement to protect the surrounding trees during construction.

Design, Conservation and Sustainable Development (Archaeoloqgy)

3.4 Previous excavation of parts of the site revealed significant prehistoric and
Romano-British archaeological features and deposits and there is a high probability
of Roman and medieval archaeology existing across the whole site at shallow
depths. The site lies within Area A3 identified in the 2007 Archaeological Remains
Management Plan. No objections to the extension of the site boundary to include the
earth mounds but if there is excavation into subsoil or removal of topsoll in this area
then this area should also be monitored. A strip, map and record with further
excavation where required prior to development commencing and this can be
secured by condition on any approval.



Page 52

Childcare Strategy

3.5 Early Years and Childcare Service advise that whilst there is currently sufficient
nursery provision in this area they are aware of possible housing developments
planned which could increase demand by 35 places. Existing providers in the area
should not be adversely affected by the development and in this instance, the
university should evidence the need for the additional places supported by a
business plan to minimise impact on the financial viability of nearby good quality
settings. The Covid-19 pandemic is likely to impact on the childcare market for both
the short and longer term. Any new provision should not have further detrimental
Impact on existing provision.

Highways Network Management

3.6 Highways Network Management have reviewed both the Transport Statement
and subsequent Addendum submitted. Whilst the applicant has advised that staff
trip rates and parking requirements have been based on the University of York
Prediction Model, underlining the range of sustainable means of travel to the site
and the 2019 Traffic Survey data (2020 data not available), the methodology is not
agreed by officers. This is because the traffic generation and parking requirements
for a pre-school nursery of this size and in this location were not considered at the
outline stage and based on experience elsewhere, are significant generators of
traffic. The nearest access to the adopted highway network is on the junction with
Hull Road in the vicinity of the Park & Ride and the impact on traffic of this section of
the network from drop-offs / pick-ups during peak hours needs to be considered
along with other potential junctions. The site’s proximity to the A64 and the need for
Park & Ride buses to function efficiently is important. Whilst the applicant has
included additional staff trips in calculations during peak hours, all trips generated by
parents/carers dropping off children/collecting children during these peak hours has
been netted off as linked trips for university staff and students or as trips already on
the network. This is not considered a reasonable assumption by officers due to the
remote location within the campus and accessibility of the nursery to the wider
residential population. There are concerns that there will be significantly increased
traffic on the key junctions around the site and officers advise the application should
be deferred as they do not have sufficient information to assess the impact of this
development on the highway.

3.7 Applying CYC parking standards to the nursery, the anticipated staff car
parking is above that forecast by the applicant, whereas the visitor (drop-off) parking



Page 53
within the site is an overprovision. Cycle parking for staff and visitors is also
considered a substantial under provision; 25 spaces for staff and 16 visitor spaces

should be provided when applying CYC standards.

Flood Risk Management

3.8 Referencing the Heslington East Campus Indicative Strategic Surface Water
Drainage Plan, (SuDS Strategy) 70072/107 Revision D dated 15" July 2008 by
Fairhurst which was approved under the 08/02543/REMM application, Flood Risk
Management advise that the site is outside the area of development designed to be
discharged to the strategic central lake and they do not support the proposed
location for the nursery. The areas to the north of Kimberlow Lane were in drainage
terms designated as landscaped areas and as such were not included in the
strategic central lake design. If however permission is granted, then the scheme will
require its own site specific attenuated surface water drainage system with a
restricted discharge of 1.4 |/sec/hectare and must not be connected unrestricted to
the central lake. This can be agreed by condition.

Public Protection

3.9 The submitted noise assessment assesses the existing noise levels at the site
and nearest residential properties and provides recommendations on
plant/machinery noise limits and mitigation measures to be installed at the nursery
to ensure adequate internal noise levels is accepted. Conditions are advised to
secure the attenuation measures, for a Construction Environmental Management
Plan (CEMP) and for construction hours. Land contamination assessments, and
where appropriate, remediation, are also advised to be secured by condition.
Provision of electric vehicle recharging points is advised.

EXTERNAL

Heslington Parish Council

3.10 The Parish Council request that a condition be attached to any approval to
prohibit access (except emergency services) from Field Lane along Kimberlow
Lane. The car parking should be for dropping off / picking up only. The Public Inquiry
specifically granted permission for the development for University use only and
associated research.



Page 54

Yorkshire Water Services

3.11 YWS note from the submitted FRA that surface water will drain to the existing
sustainable drainage system that serves the wider site; given this, they have no
further comment to make.

Ouse and Derwent Internal Drainage Board

3.12 The Board has assets in the wider area in the form of various watercourses.
These watercourses are known to be subject to high flows during storm events.
Noting that the applicant is proposing to discharge into the University’s lake system,
providing this area falls within the catchment area previously agreed under planning
permission 08/02543/REMM for the construction of the lake, when discharge rates
were agreed, then providing it is within the catchment, the Board has no further
comments. If this is not correct, then the Board wish to be reconsulted.

4.0 REPRESENTATIONS
4.1 No comments received.
5.0 APPRAISAL

KEY ISSUES

5.1 The key issues are considered to be:

- Principle of development
- Landscape

- Ecology

- Archaeology

- Design

- Highways

- Drainage

PLANNING CONTEXT

The National Planning Policy Framework (February 2019) (NPPF)

5.2 The revised National Planning Policy Framework was republished with very
minor modifications in February 2019 (NPPF) and its planning policies are material



Page 55

to the determination of planning applications. It is a material consideration in the
determination of this application.

5.3 The NPPF sets out the Government's overarching planning policies. Planning
should contribute to achieving sustainable development which comprises of
economic, social and environmental objectives. Development proposals that accord
with an up-to-date development plan should be approved without delay. Where
there are no relevant development plan policies or where they are out of date,
planning permission should be granted unless policies in this framework that protect
areas or assets of particular importance provide a clear reason for refusing the
development proposed or any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and
demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the
NPPF as a whole.

5.4 Section 6 supports the expansion of businesses. Significant weight should be
placed on the need to support economic growth. Section 8 on healthy and safe
communities promotes development which encourages social interaction. This may
be through mixed use developments and street layouts which allow easy
connections and have active street frontages. Access to a network of high quality
open spaces and opportunities for sport and physical activity is important for the
health and well-being of communities. Existing open space should not be built on
unless an assessment has been undertaken which shows the open space to be
surplus to requirements or equivalent or better provision in a suitable location is
provided.

5.5 Section 9 promotes sustainable transport modes. Section 12 requires
development to function well and add to the overall quality of the area, be visually
attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and effective
landscaping, be sympathetic to local character and history including the landscape
setting, establishing a strong sense of place. Permission should be refused for
development of poor design.

5.6 Section 15 sets policies for conserving the natural environment. This includes
protecting valued landscapes, recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of the
countryside, and the wider benefits of trees and woodland.

York Local Plan Publication Draft (February 2018)

5.7 The Publication Draft City of York Local Plan 2018 ('2018 Draft Plan') was
submitted for examination on 25 May 2018. Phase 1 of the hearings into the
examination of the Local Plan took place in December 2019. In accordance with



Page 56

paragraph 48 of the NPPF the Draft Plan policies can be afforded weight according
to:

-The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation,
the greater the weight that may be given);

- The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and

- The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the
policies in the previous NPPF published in March 2012. (NB: Under transitional
arrangements plans submitted for examination before 24 January 2019 will be

assessed against the 2012 NPPF).

5.8 The policies map allocates the site as within the University Campus but as
‘existing open space’. It is not Green Belt land.

5.9 Policy ED1 ‘University of York’ supports a mix of uses on campus including
academic and teaching uses, housing for staff and students, sports and social
facilities ancillary to higher education and other ancillary uses to the university.
Policy ED3: ‘Campus East’ sets development parameters including a restriction of
the developed footprint (buildings, car parking and access roads) of not more than
23% of the 65ha area allocated for development, a maximum of 1,500 parking
spaces, and the maintenance of a parkland setting.

5.10 Policy HW4 ‘Childcare provision’ supports development which meets the city’s
needs. Proposals which fail to protect existing childcare facilities will be refused. Any
new facilities should be in accessible locations and easily accessible by public
transport, walking and by bicycle.

5.11 Policy D2 ‘Landscape and Setting’ requires development to conserve and
enhance landscape quality and character and the public’s enjoyment of it. Proposals
should enhance public use and enjoyment of existing open spaces, recognising the
significance of landscape features such as topography, trees and hedgerows.

5.12 Policy G13 states that green corridors and open spaces should be maintained
and enhanced whilst protecting and enhancing the amenity and experience of
existing rights of way and open access land. Policy G14 requires development to
recognise the value of existing tree cover and hedgerows and their biodiversity
value. G15 ‘Protection of open space’ explains that development proposals will not
be permitted which would harm the character of, or lead to the loss of open space,
of environmental or recreational importance unless it can be satisfactorily replaced



Page 57

in the area of benefit in terms of quality, quantity and access with an equal or better
standard than that which would be lost.

5.13 Policy CC1 requires new buildings to achieve a reasonable reduction in
carbon emissions of at least 28% through the provisions of renewable technologies
or through energy efficiency measures. Policy CC2 requires developments to
demonstrate high standards of sustainable design and construction, energy and
carbon dioxide savings. All new non-residential buildings should achieve BREEAM
‘excellent’.

Development Control Local Plan incorporating the 4™ set of changes (2005)

5.14 The DCLP was approved for development control purposes in April 2005.
Whilst the DCLP does not form part of the statutory development plan, its policies
are considered to be capable of being material considerations in the determination
of planning applications where policies relevant to the application are consistent with
those in the NPPF as revised in July 2018, although the weight that can be afforded
to them is very limited.

5.15 The draft proposals map shows half of the site as Open Space (Policy GP7)
and the lower half as New University Campus Phase 1 Indicative Boundaries (Policy
ED9). The following policies carry some limited weight:

- GP1 Design: development should be of a layout, scale, mass and design
compatible with the character of the area. It should avoid the loss of open
spaces and important gaps within development, vegetation and other features
that contribute to the quality of the local environment. Urban spaces, public
views and rural setting should be retained and enhanced where it makes a
significant contribution to the character of the area.

- GP7 Open space: Development will only be permitted where there would be
no detrimental effect on local amenity or nature conservation and
compensatory provision of an equivalent size and standard is provided in the
immediate vicinity.

- NEL1 protects trees, woodlands and hedgerows. Developments should make
proper provision for the planting of new trees and other vegetation.

- C7 supports development of children’s nurseries where they are of an
appropriate size with external play space, there they protect neighbour
amenity and are well served by sustainable modes of travel.

The Heslington Parish Neighbourhood Plan (HPNP) (September 2019)




Page 58

5.16 The HPNP Submission Version was consulted upon for 6 weeks from 30™"
October 2019. Referencing paragraph 48 in the NPPF, at this time relevant draft
policies therefore carry only limited weight.

5.17 The draft policies map identifies the site as within the University Campus but
wholly within ‘Significant Green Space’ identified as ‘Campus East Lake and
Grounds’. Policy HES:14 ‘Green infrastructure’ supports proposals that can be
shown to avoid significant harm to the environment including trees, woods, hedges,
grass field margins, flora and fauna and to the significant green spaces. Where
significant harm cannot be avoided, it must be adequately mitigated, or as a last
resort, compensated for. Kimberlow Hill, with extensive views, is identified as
forming an important green open space buffer between Badger Hill, Heslington
Village, new housing and Campus East and should comprise simple parkland.

5.18 Policy HES:19 University of York states that development proposals for the
campuses will be supported, subject to the green open space ‘buffer zones’
protecting the landscape settings of Heslington village and Badger Hill remaining
undeveloped.

ASSESSMENT

Principle of development

5.19 There is no adopted development plan for this site. The context is provided by
the policies of the NPPF 2019, with limited weight attached to the Publication Draft
Plan (2018) and emerging Heslington Parish Neighbourhood Plan (2019) and very
limited weight to the DCLP 2005.

5.20 Within the Publication Draft Plan 2018, the site is identified as being within the
new University Campus (Campus East) but wholly within designated existing open
space. This open space designation encircles the new campus and is intended to
provide a parkland setting, a visual break between the campus and the local
community, as a recreational resource and as mitigation for the development. This
open space designation follows the broad masterplan from the outline planning
permission in 2008, and its various updates and amendments since and including
the latest masterplan document from 2018, approved through AOD/18/00196
Condition 11 of 15/02923/0OUT; MAKE Architect’s ‘Campus East Cluster 4 Design
Brief including Masterplan’ (dated 19 June 2018).

5.21 This 2018 Masterplan (AOD/18/00196) (section L, p35 in the report) shows
the site as within green parkland and with a proposed car park to the west and
proposed Cluster 3 development to the south. It confirms the lower two thirds of the



Page 59

site as being within the ‘allocated area for development’ but the whole of the site as
‘green space including tree and woodland planting’. Land to the west of the
proposed nursery building is shown as ‘parking outside the principal development
areas’ and is the only built development north of the service road (Kimberlow Lane).
This area is partly within the extended red line boundary of the proposed site, but for
which only flattening of the spoil heaps is proposed in this application.

5.22 All allocations and the proposed masterplan identify the site as open
space/parkland and therefore the proposed nursery is in direct conflict with these
draft policies and 2018 masterplan.

5.23 The nursery use, as a replacement and larger nursery is considered an
appropriate use under condition 5 of the 2015 outline permission ‘(d) uses ancillary
to the University’, and emerging local plan policies. It is anticipated that a majority of
users of the facility would be University staff and students and this will increase as
the campus is built out. However some places would also reasonably be given to the
wider community and users of the crcche facility, so close to York Sport, would also
include those attending the gym, swimming pool and fitness classes unrelated to the
University as well as other leisure pastimes.

5.24 Noting the requirements of HW4 ‘Childcare provision’ and advice from
colleagues in Childcare, the proposed nursery is both a relocation and extension to
meet existing and future demand of the new campus. It is understood that the
current nursery has a long waiting list and cannot meet all of the demand. As the
campus is continued to be built out, it is reasonable to expect the demand from staff
and students to increase. The principle of a nursery of this size to provide childcare
on campus is considered reasonable and the applicant is not required to provide
further justification.

Landscape assessment

5.25 The first reference for any planning application is the development plan. In
this instance, without an adopted plan, reference is made to the relevant policies in
the emerging Publication Draft Local Plan (2018) and emerging Neighbourhood Plan
(2019) which can be attributed limited weight. The whole application site is identified
as ‘existing open space’ in the former and as ‘significant green space’ in the latter.
Emerging Policy G15 states that the loss of open space will not be permitted unless
it can be replaced to an equal or better standard. Policy G13 and G14 similarly
protect open space, trees and hedgerows.

5.26 The 2018 approved masterplan for Campus East similarly confirms the
proposed site as green space, but also shows the land adjacent as a surface car



Page 60

park with the upper south facing slopes on Kimberlow Hill reformed to accommodate
it.

5.27 The application site is rectangular and comprises an arable field, and land to
the west including previous spoil heaps associated with former archaeological
investigation. The site sits on the upper sections of the long south-facing slopes of
Kimberlow Hill and it is considered an important piece of green infrastructure which
continues alongside Field Lane in one direction and links with the wider countryside
in the other. It is accessible to the public. Approximately half of the top of Kimberlow
Hill has been planted with young woodland. The importance of the site in the
landscape is the identifiable rise in topography within the generally flat vale, its
geology as a glacial moraine, the absence of built form, its peaceful ambience, its
contribution to the parkland setting to the north of the new campus, and green
panoramic vistas from the upper slope within the site. There are well trodden
informal paths running within the site boundary immediately south of the woodland
and extending into the adjacent fields. The PRoW to the east of the site extends
south to York Sport and the wider campus, and north through the woodland to
connect with the Kimberlow Hill parkland, local communities and the Park & Ride
site.

5.28 The introduction of the proposed nursery, as built form as well as
accommodating up to 148 children at one time will change the ambience of the area
from a quiet natural space, free from development and will restrict the views from
the upper slopes, particularly those from the informal routes through the site.
However the continued build out of the campus to the south will also introduce new
activity to the area and the proposals should be seen in this context. Some elevated
views will be retained along the PRoW but interrupted to the south-west by the
nursery and additional planting.

5.29 The proposed nursery requires earthworks to create a level platform with
consequential loss of the gentle sloped topography in this location. The revised
drawings and show the nursery building and excavations not impacting on the
woodland belt to the north. The single storey building is nestled into the slope and
remains significantly smaller in scale such that the woodland is retained on the
skyline and as a backdrop to the building. A new detailed landscape proposals plan
shows a naturalistic planting scheme to the south and east of the nursery building
and surrounding the fenced and walled direct external amenity space for the
children. This scheme comprises wildflower meadow, gentle undulating topography
before the steep drop to the road, swales, native shrub planting and clumps of
woodland trees. Landscaping to the car park and front entrance is more ornamental
to tie in with the built form and will soften the hard landscaping of parking areas and



Page 61

the building behind. This scheme is acceptable and no further changes are required
following comments from the Landscape architect and applicant’s justification.

5.30 Additional hedgerows are proposed to create a new field boundary on the
west side of the car park and to the south of the nursery play space. The gaps in the
hedgerow alongside the PRoW are to be planted with native hedgerow species
further helping to screen the proposed nursery building from public views, and with
landscape and ecological benefits. A further benefit of the scheme is the levelling of
the spoil mounds which sit in contrast to the gentle slopes. This landscape design is
supported, will soften the impact of the building on the hill slope and blur the edges
between the proposed and existing green infrastructure.

Design

5.31 The proposed pre-school nursery comprises a single storey development with
three shallow dual pitched roofs running parallel across the site. It is a maximum of
6m in height to the ridge and provides 1,100 sgm gross floorspace with level access
throughout. A shallow pitched canopy across sections of the north and south
elevations will provide outside play space in inclement weather or shade in the
height of summer. Materials include buff brick and timber panels and louvres,
standing seam zinc roofs and full height glazed doors and windows on the external
elevations and a fully glazed entrance lobby/circulation space running centrally
through the building. Projecting pattern brickwork is proposed for sections of the
external elevations and on the boundary walls to add interest and soften the external
appearance. There are separate areas for different age groups and both separate
and shared external play spaces bounded by brick walls, metal fencing and hedging.
The proposed design is supported and will provide a high quality facility, with
differing spaces and internal and external areas for the benefit of the nursery
children.

5.32 The agent has confirmed that the building will be designed to achieve
BREEAM “excellent”. The nursery has been designed to incorporate passivhaus
principles which has informed the form, layout, percentage of glazing and overall
building fabric. The scheme adopts a highly thermally efficient, extremely air-tight
envelope with mechanically assisted ventilation to distribute tempered air. As such
the building would be comfortable and healthy and have low energy and running
costs. The passivehaus design would be particularly welcomed and address the
requirements of emerging policies CC1 and CC2.

5.33 The car park will provide accessible car parking drop off spaces and generous
widths (3m) to allow for car seats and small children to be lifted out of vehicles.
Within the building, door sizes, corridors and accessible WCs will provide for less



Page 62

able bodied users. A condition can require the provision of 2no. dedicated electric
vehicle recharging spaces, most likely to be used by the longer term parking of staff
users.

5.34 Overall, the proposed design is supported and responds to the palate of
materials elsewhere on campus.

Archaeology

5.35 From previous investigations it is likely that there will be valuable
archaeological remains, particularly Roman remains, at shallow depths within the
site. However, a strip, map and record with further excavation where required can
investigate and record such deposits prior to construction commencing and can be
secured by condition.

Drainage

5.36 The original masterplan for the campus intended that the proposed site
formed parkland, as such the approved drainage strategy for surface water to be
discharged into the lake did not take into account the principle of development of a
building(s) in this location. The approved Strategic Surface Water (SuDS Drainage
Strategy) - Re: 70072/107 Revision D dated 15th July 2008 by Fairhurst was did not
consider surface water discharge from the site. The proposed scheme to discharge
unrestricted to the lake is not supported and a site specific drainage scheme needs
to be proposed. This can be secured by condition. The outline planning permission
includes conditions 19 and 20 on drainage details but in this instance, as the
scheme is outside of the previously approved drainage catchment for the lake,
additional conditions are advised.

Highways

5.37 Access to the Nursery in a private vehicle from the east is along Kimberlow
Lane and the A1079 Hull Road signalled junction to the north of the site or from the
west via the central access to the Campus from Field Lane, Badger Hill. An existing
roundabout within the campus on Kimberlow Lane would provide access via a new
spur into a new 30 space car park. Revisions to proposals state that it is intended
that 16 of these spaces would be available for drop-off of children and the remainder
for nursery staff car parking.

5.38 The Grimston Bar Park & Ride site is within a short walk (c5 mins) of the
proposed nursery. The University Transit System (free campus shuttle buses)
operates along Kimberlow Way and would provide opportunity for staff and student



Page 63

parent/carers to access both campuses following drop-off/collection from the
nursery. Assuming that most parents will travel by car to drop off their children, if
they are staff or students at campus, they will need to re-park their vehicle either in a
longer stay car park to the west on Kimberlow Lane by the Field Lane roundabout or
at Campus West after drop-off before continuing on to their destination. As Cluster 3
is built out, further car parks will become available — one being identified
immediately to the west of the site, the other south of the Park and Ride. Therefore
the opportunity for linked trips will increase, supported by the initiatives in the
University wide Travel Plan.

5.39 A network of formal and informal pedestrian routes already exist throughout
the West and East Campuses linking to the adjacent PRoW, the park and ride site
and the parkland to the north. Revised plans now show 8no. Sheffield stands for
parking of 16 bicycles at drop off in accordance with CYC parking standards. An
undercover staff cycle parking facility for 12no. bicycles locked to Sheffield stands is
proposed towards the rear of the site (with bin store).

5.40 Highways Network Management, having assessed the original and revised
proposals, express concerns over the volume of additional traffic likely to be
generated by the nursery (103 spaces) and crcche (additional 44 spaces at one time
in up to five two-hour sessions). Whilst some of the children at the nursery may
relocate from the existing nursery, they considered that new customers will be
potentially from a much wider catchment due to the site’s accessibility by car and
also the proximity of the park and ride site. The remote location from Campus West
may encourage people to drive closer to their destination following drop-off and re-
enter the local highway network. It is agreed with the applicant, that most children
will be driven to the nursery, but in contrast it is not therefore also agreed that the
only additional traffic will be from staff travelling to the nursery during peak hours
and all other vehicle movements associated with the children being dropped off can
be netted off.

5.41 Further consideration has thus been given as to whether the proposals can be
supported. The existing nursery on Campus West reports being at full capacity and
since it was established, the second campus has been partly built out. Clearly there
will be an increased demand for spaces from University staff and students and the
University have made it clear that a new high quality nursery facility on site is
required to attract and retain high calibre academics and other staff members. It is
therefore reasonable to expect a high proportion of linked trips, but as there is
limited long term car parking nearby and the facility is some distance from Campus
West, it is still not agreed that all drop-off movements can simply be discounted from
the peak hour flows.



Page 64

5.42 The outline consent (15/02923/0OUT) contained a number of transport related
conditions; two of which are particularly pertinent to this application. Condition 6
required annual traffic surveys through three principal junctions, and Condition 7
required that all reserved matters applications submit predicted traffic flows. If the
surveys indicate an increase in traffic at the three junctions of more than 5% then
mitigation measures to reduced actual traffic flows to the predicted levels are
required.

5.43 The latest traffic survey available was from 2019 and that indicated that the
actual flows are significantly higher than the mitigation threshold during peak periods
for the level of build out of the campus to date. However the applicants advise that
whilst the 2019 survey recorded trips significantly over the agreed theoretical
threshold at this stage in the build process (43% increase), they are still within the
maximum permitted vehicle trip threshold for the full build out of the campus. The
applicant’s planning statement indicates that spaces at the nursery will be allocated
to children of students and staff at the University and affiliated companies, delegates
at conferences and other University activities and then if places are still available, to
children of local residents. Therefore it is not unreasonable to expect a high level of
linked trips and this would increase as the build-out of the Campus continues. The
latest information provided by the applicant under separate cover is that
approximately 95% of nursery places are for existing staff and students.

5.44 As the forecast trip generations are within the maximum permitted allowance
for full build out of the Campus with 356 trips still permitted within the overall limit,
and measures are in place via a Travel Plan to encourage more sustainable modes
of travel, the conclusion is that the Outline consent’s conditions 6 and 7 still control
the additional trip generation for the campus as a whole. The measures reported by
the University to promote sustainable choices of travel to and within campus
developed in their Travel Plan (Condition 8 of the outline permission requires review
and agreement of the Travel Plan by the LPA) will help to encourage sustainable
travel choices within and between the two campuses. Therefore, whilst it is agreed
that the proposals will generate more trips in the peak period than suggested by the
applicant, there are mechanisms in place for review and mitigation, and as the
Campus continues to develop, so the potential for linked trips and sustainable travel
choices increases.

5.45 The University are reviewing its parking provision across its whole estate. All
future proposals (e.g. cluster 3 and/or a car park) will be subject to reserved matters
applications and would need to be considered by the Council on their individual
merits at the time, and this would include forecast traffic generation. Should the
Travel Surveys continue to demonstrate an increase in vehicle movements beyond



Page 65

permitted increase, then the Outline consent conditions will require mitigation to be
implemented and a control on any further build out.

5.46 The number of drop off spaces being 16 of the 30 spaces is considered
reasonable and acceptable and can be secured by condition. The remainder will be
available for staff car parking and two of these can be identified for dedicated
electric vehicle recharging. Additional staff vehicles can be parked elsewhere on
campus and staff walk or take the shuttle bus to the nursery. Whilst staff cycle
parking facilities are below CYC minimum parking standards, they have been
informed by University surveys of travel modes and can be increased if required
through review of Travel Plans. The applicant has advised they will provide more
spaces should they be required but are confident in their assessment of need from
the surveys and will not provide additional places through this application. Further
evidence has been provided on service vehicle size (private contractor vehicles of
6.3m length by 2.0m wide) and these align with the submitted swept path diagrams.
Therefore in terms of parking provision and service vehicle movements, the
proposals are considered acceptable.

Ecology

5.47 The submitted ecology report confirms that there are no ecological concerns
relating to the development and this is accepted. The report includes
recommendations for ecological enhancement and this would be supported
including bat / bird boxes, gapping up the hedgerow and a wildflower meadow area.
This could be agreed by condition. Protection of woodland and suitable fencing to
protect badgers/hedgehogs during construction could also be conditioned.

Other Material Factors

5.48 Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined
in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. The application is not in accordance with draft or emerging development
plans due to the principle of the development on designated open space / parkland
and thus consideration is given to other material factors in the planning balance. The
applicant has set out the justification for the nursery in this location as follows:

- The approved masterplan and outline consent were always intended to be
indicative and provide a strategic framework for future development and
should be able to adapt and evolve over time. Historically the form of
development has not been strictly in accordance with the parameters set by
the masterplan, which is now twelve years old. The site is within the 65ha site
allocated for development.



Page 66

The principle of reforming a section of the higher slopes of Kimberlow Hill for a
car park as shown in the masterplan has already established the principle of
cutting into the hill in this location. The landscaping proposed will limit the
visibility of the nursery.

There is a pressing need for additional nursery places on the University
Campus due to the existing over-demand plus the University expansion and
the poor quality of the existing pre-fabricated nursery building at Campus
West, which is coming to the end of its life and has a number of problems
including lack of space, lack of facilities, problems of overheating/cooling and
inadequate drop-off facilities. Concerns have been raised by Ofsted on the
condition of the building and with consequential potential impact on funding
through loss of revenue if the nursery’s ‘good’ rating is not maintained.

The existing nursery site is not favoured for the new facility due to the need to
maintain operation of the nursery during the construction of the replacement
building. It is a small site surrounded by trees within the Grade Il listed
parkland.

Alternative sites have been assessed and discounted. Campus West is near
its 23% footprint restriction for buildings and car parks. Alternatives sites were
too small, located in the Green Belt, could not accommodate traffic or
considered inappropriate visually.

The need for a high quality nursery to provide childcare for staff and students
IS seen as a key driver in attracting the highest calibre staff and students from
a variety of backgrounds. In turn, this supports the University’s reputation and
desirability as a first class place to study and thus its continued role as a major
employer and of its economic contribution to the city.

The proposed nursery site does relate to the car park ‘jellybean’ on the
approved plan C(i) north of Kimberlow Lane and which also included
reprofiling of the hillside. The site is within the ‘allocated area of development’.

The nursery cannot be located within the undeveloped Cluster 3 area because
the University need to maximise development potential through building to
maximum heights as permitted on the approved plans whilst not exceeding the
23% developed footprint. Campus East is intended to be car free with cars
restricted to the periphery. As the children will need to be dropped off by
parents close to the entrance, the nursery cannot be within the central park of
the campus.



Page 67

- The impact of the proposal on the recreational value of Campus East is
negligible with the application site forming just 1.5% of the total campus area.
The campus is large enough to allow public recreation and amenity in other
spaces. The PRoW and other amenity routes around the site remain
unaffected.

- The site’s location close to the sports village provides further education
synergies and support for healthy lifestyles for parents with the short term
créche facility.

- A nursery adjacent to teaching accommodation is not considered to be
compatible with the latter built at much higher density resulting in
overshadowing and overlooking of children’s play areas. The proposed site will
not be overlooked.

- The site has no close neighbours so noise from children’s play would not be
inhibited.

- The site is in a sustainable location, easily accessible by bicycle and is not
expected to generate many additional vehicle trips during peak hours.

- Wider benefits of the proposals include removal of the archaeological spoil
heaps and gapping up of the hedgerow alongside the PRoW to improve
integration with the landscape.

6.0 CONCLUSION

6.1 The application is for a new (replacement and enlarged) pre-school nursery
and créche in a new single storey building at The University of York’s Campus East.
It is accepted that there are no other suitable sites for the nursery which would not
compromise the University’s objectives nor the build out of the masterplan area. As
all other factors; design, access, sustainability, suitable drainage etc are
supportable, in the planning balance the harm identified to the parkland landscape is
outweighed by the urgent need and lack of suitable alternative location. Planning
law requires that applications are determined in accordance with the development
plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. As York does not have an
adopted development plan, those emerging policies which identify the site as open
space carry limited weight. There are compelling reasons put forward by the
applicant and as such, considering all issues in the planning balance, the application
is recommended for approval.



Page 68

7.0 RECOMMENDATION: Approve

1  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following plans and other submitted details:-

Location plan, P106 rev C, received 12.10.2020

Proposed masterplan, P110 rev H, received 12.10.2020

Proposed site plan, P111 rev J, received 06.11.2020

Proposed ground floor site plan, P210 rev J, received 12.10.2020
Proposed ground floor plan, P200 rev D, received 09.06.2020
Proposed elevations sheet 1, P245 rev C, received 09.06.2020
Proposed elevations sheet 2, P246 rev B, received 09.06.2020
Proposed roof plan, P220 rev D, received 09.06.2020

Proposed site elevations sheet 1, P240 rev C, received 12.10.2020
Proposed site elevations sheet 2, P241 rev D, received 12.10.2020
Proposed long site section, P300 rev D, received 12.10.2020
Proposed building sections, P320, rev A, received 13.03.2020
Proposed building sections, P321 rev A, received 13.03.2020

Render view 1, P700 rev A, received 13.03.2020

Render view 2, P701 rev A, received 13.03.2020

Landscape proposals LLO1 rev A, received 12.10.2020

Proposed site plan boundary conditions, P115 rev C, received 12.10.2020
Proposed bike/bin store plan, P330 rev B, received 09.06.2020

Drainage Strategy Sheet 1 of 2, 92001-P01, received 13.03.2020

External lighting philosophy layout, UYN-WSP-00-GF-DR-E-630301, rev P01,
received 13.03.2020

External lighting layout, UYN-WSP-00-GF-DR-E-630302, rev P01, received
13.03.2020

Smeeden Foreman's Landscape Setting SF 3040, rev A, August 2020
Smeeden Foreman's Preliminary ecological appraisal SF 2974 September 2019
ADT Environmental Noise Impact Assessment 2942/ENIA 14.01.2020

YAT Desk based assessment, 09.02.2020

Design and Access Statement, received 13.03.2020

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried
out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority.

2  Within three months of the commencement of development a detailed
landscape scheme shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval in



Page 69

writing. This shall include the species, stock size, density (spacing), and position of
trees, shrubs and other plants; and seed mixes, sowing rates and mowing regimes.
It will also include tree planting details including ground preparation, soil volumes,
means of support, protection, and watering. The proposed tree planting shall be
compatible with existing and proposed utilities. This scheme as approved shall be
implemented within a period of six months of the practical completion of the
development. Any trees or plants which within a period of five years from the
substantial completion of the planting and development, die, are removed or
become seriously damaged or diseased, shall be replaced in the next planting
season with others of a similar size and species, unless the Local Planning Authority
agrees alternatives in writing.

Reason: So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with the variety,
suitability and disposition of species across the site, since the landscape scheme, is
integral to the landscape mitigation and amenity of the development.

3 Prior to the commencement of development, a complete and detailed
Arboricultural Method Statement regarding protection measures for the existing
trees and hedgerows shown to be retained on the approved drawings shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This statement
shall include details and locations of protective fencing shown on a tree protection
plan, a schedule of tree works if applicable, site rules and prohibitions, phasing of
works, locations and means of installing utilities, and the location of a site
compound. A copy of the document will be available for reference and inspection on
site at all times. The development shall be carried out with the approved
Arboricultural Method Statement.

Reason: To protect existing trees and hedgerows that are considered to make a
significant contribution to the amenity of this area and / or the development.

4  Notwithstanding any proposed materials specified on the approved drawings
or in the application form submitted with the application, samples of the external
materials to be used shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority prior to the erection of any part of the building above foundation
level. The development shall be carried out using the approved materials.

Note: Because of limited storage space at our offices it would be appreciated if
sample materials could be made available for inspection at the site. Please make it
clear in your approval of details application when the materials will be available for
inspection and where they are located.

Reason: So as to achieve a visually cohesive appearance.



Page 70

5  Prior to first occupation of the development, all boundaries shall have been
installed in accordance with approved drawings 'Proposed site plan boundary
conditions' (20396 _P155 rev C) and 'Landscape proposals' (LLO1 Rev A).

Reason: So as to achieve a visually cohesive appearance.

6 A programme of post-determination archaeological mitigation, specifically an
archaeological strip, map and record is required on this site.

The archaeological scheme comprises 3 stages of work. Each stage shall be
completed and approved by the Local Planning Authority before any site preparation
and construction works can commence.

A)  No groundworks or site stripping shall take place outside of the areas already
archaeologically excavated, until a written scheme of investigation (WSI) for a strip,
map and record with excavation where appropriate has been submitted to and
approved by the local planning authority in writing. For land that is included within
the WSI, no development shall take place other than in accordance with the agreed
WSI. The WSI should conform to standards set by the Chartered Institute for
Archaeologists.

B) The site investigation and post-investigation assessment shall be completed in
accordance with the programme set out in the Written Scheme of Investigation
approved under condition (A) and the provision made for analysis, publication and
dissemination of results together with archive deposit. This part of the condition
shall not be agreed until these elements have been fulfilled in accordance with the
programme set out in the WSI.

C) A copy of a report (and evidence for publication if required) shall be deposited
with City of York Historic Environment Record to allow public dissemination of
results within 3 months of completion or such other period as may be agreed in
writing with the Local Planning Authority.

This condition is imposed in accordance with Section 16 of the National Planning
Policy Framework.

Reason: The site is considered to be an area of archaeological interest. Therefore,
the development may affect important archaeological deposits which must be
recorded prior to destruction.

7  The site shall be developed with separate systems of drainage for foul and
surface water on and off site.

Reason: In the interest of satisfactory and sustainable drainage.



Page 71

8  Prior to the commencement of development, (other than the archaeological
investigations and recording) details of the proposed means of foul and surface
water drainage, including details of any balancing works and off site works, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
drainage shall be provided in accordance with these approved details prior to first
occupancy.

Reason: So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with these details for
the proper and sustainable drainage of the site.

9  Unless otherwise first approved in writing by the local planning authority, there
shall be no piped discharge of surface water from the development prior to the
completion of the approved surface water drainage works and no buildings shall be
occupied or brought into use prior to completion of the approved foul drainage
works.

Reason: So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied that no foul and
surface water discharges take place until proper provision has been made for their
disposal.

10 Prior to the nursery coming into first use, all sound attenuation measures
detailed in the noise assessment supplied being ADT's Noise Assessment ref
ADT/2942 dated 14/1/20 shall be fully implemented. Thereafter they shall be
maintained as such, or replaced with suitable other measures as necessary to
achieve the same sound reduction for the lifetime of the development.

Reason: To protect the amenity of neighbours.

11 Prior to development commencing and in conjunction with the archaeological
assessment, an investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken to assess
the nature and extent of any potential land contamination. The investigation and risk
assessment must be undertaken by competent persons and a written report of the
findings must be produced and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
prior to development commencing. The report of the findings must include:

I a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination (including ground
gases where appropriate);

. an assessment of the potential risks to:

0 human health,

0 property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets,
woodland and service lines and pipes,

0 adjoining land,

0 groundwaters and surface waters,

0 ecological systems,

0 archaeological sites and ancient monuments;



Page 72

lii.  an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s).

This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's
‘Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11"

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.

12  Prior to development commening and subject to the outcome of the
investigation for the presence of any land contamination, if required, a detailed
remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use (by
removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property and the
natural and historical environment) must be prepared and submitted to the local
planning authority and approved in writing. The scheme must include all works to
be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable
of works and site management procedures. The scheme must ensure that the site
will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection
Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land after remediation.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.

13 Should remediation be required, the approved land remediation scheme must
be carried out in accordance with the necessary timescales and its terms. A
verification report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out
must be produced for approval in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to first
occupation of the development hereby approved.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems.

14  Prior to the development commencing details of the cycle parking areas,
including means of enclosure, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The building shall not be occupied until the cycle parking
areas and means of enclosure have been provided within the site in accordance
with such approved details, and these areas shall not be used for any purpose other
than the parking of cycles.



Page 73

Reason: To promote use of cycles thereby reducing congestion on the adjacent
roads and in the interests of the amenity of neighbours.

15 The building shall not be occupied until the areas shown on the approved
plans for parking and manoeuvring of vehicles (and cycles, if shown) have been
constructed and laid out in accordance with the approved plans, and thereafter such
areas shall be retained solely for such purposes. This shall include the retention of a
minimum of 16no. parking spaces within the site for exclusive use by parents/carers
of the nursery / creche as drop off spaces and not at any time for long term parking
(defined as more than 30 minutes). A sign shall be erected on site displaying this
information.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

16  Within 6 months of first occupation of the development a site specific travel
plan shall be submitted to the council for approval in writing. The development shall
subsequently be occupied in accordance with the aims, measures and outcomes of
the travel plan as approved in writing by the local planning authority.

Reason: To ensure that the development complies with national and local
transportation guidance and to ensure that adequate provision is made for the
movement of vehicles, pedestrians, cycles and other modes of transport to and from
the site together with parking on site for these users. As the nursery may be
operated independently to the University, this will ensure compliance with
sustainability objectives.

17 No development shall take place (including ground works and vegetation
clearance) until a construction environmental management plan (CEMP:
Biodiversity) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. The CEMP (Biodiversity) shall include the following:

a) Risk assessment of potentially damaging construction activities on the woodland
and hedgerows surrounding the site.

b) Use of directional lighting during construction and operation, which will not shine
upon the site boundaries, hedgerows or trees within the site.

c)The location of all storage of materials and parking and maneouvring of vehicles

during works.

d) The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to biodiversity features.
e) Use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs.

The approved CEMP shall be adhered to and implemented throughout the
construction period in accordance with the approved details, unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the local planning authority.

Reason: To protect habitats of ecological value being the surrounding woodland and



Page 74

hedgerows during construction.

18 Details of the reduction in carbon emissions for the development hereby
approved would achieve when compared against Part L of the Building Regulations
(the notional building) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the construction of the building
above foundation level. The development shall be carried out in accordance with
these approved details.

The details shall demonstrate a reduction in carbon emissions of at least 28%
through the provision of renewable or low carbon technologies or through energy
efficiency measures and at least a 19% reduction in dwelling emission rate
compared to the Target Emission Rate (calculated using Standard Assessment
Procedure methodology as per Part L1A of the Building Regulations).

Details shall also be submitted that demonstrate that the development shall also
achieve a water consumption rate of no more than 110 litres per person per day
(calculated as per Part G of the Building Regulations).

Reason: In the interests of sustainable design and in accordance with policies CC1
and CC2 of the Publication Draft Local Plan 2018.

19  Prior to first occupation of the development 2no. Electric Vehicle Recharging
Points shall be provided in a position and to a specification previously agreed in
writing by the local planning authority and shall be maintained and kept in good
working order thereafter as specified by the manufacturer. All charging points shall
be located in a prominent position on the site and shall be for the exclusive use of
zero emission vehicles.

Reason: To promote and facilitate the uptake of electric vehicles on the site in line
with the Council's Low Emission Strategy (LES) and the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF).

Notes:

Electric Vehicle Charging Points should incorporate a suitably rated 32A 'I[EC 62196
electrical socket to allow ‘Mode 3' charging of an electric vehicle. The exact
specification is subject to agreement in writing with the council. The location of
charging points should be identified by parking bay marking and signage. All
electrical circuits/installations shall comply with the electrical requirements in force at
the time of installation.

8.0 INFORMATIVES:
Notes to Applicant



Page 75

1. STATEMENT OF THE COUNCIL'S POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE APPROACH

In considering the application, the Local Planning Authority has implemented the
requirements set out within the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 38)
in seeking solutions to problems identified during the processing of the application.
The Local Planning Authority took the following steps in order to achieve a positive
outcome:

Requested submission of further information on highways impact

Requested clarification of the proposals and any impact on the woodland to the
north

Agreed landscape revisions

Agreed drainage details would be agreed via condition as requested

Agreed pre-commencement of development conditions

2. DEVELOPMENT INFORMATIVE:

The developer's attention is drawn to the various requirements for the control of
noise on construction sites laid down in the Control of Pollution Act 1974. In order to
ensure that residents are not adversely affected by air pollution and noise, the
following guidance should be adhered to, failure to do so could result in formal
action being taken under the Control of Pollution Act 1974:

(a) All demolition and construction works and ancillary operations, including
deliveries to and despatch from the site shall be confined to the following hours:

Monday to Friday 08.00 to 18.00
Saturday 09.00 to 13.00
Not at all on Sundays and Bank Holidays.

(b)The work shall be carried out in such a manner so as to comply with the general
recommendations of British Standards BS 5228: Part 1: 1997, a code of practice for
"Noise and Vibration Control on Construction and Open Sites" and in particular
Section 10 of Part 1 of the code entitled "Control of noise and vibration".

(c) All plant and machinery to be operated, sited and maintained in order to minimise
disturbance. All items of machinery powered by internal combustion engines must
be properly silenced and/or fitted with effective and well-maintained mufflers in
accordance with manufacturers instructions.

(d) The best practicable means, as defined by Section 72 of the Control of Pollution
Act 1974, shall be employed at all times, in order to minimise noise emissions.

(e) All reasonable measures shall be employed in order to control and minimise dust
emissions, including sheeting of vehicles and use of water for dust suppression.



Page 76

(f) There shall be no bonfires on the site

3. INFORMATIVE: CONSTRUCTION ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT PLAN
(CEMP)

To be in accordance with condition 14 of 20/01270/OUT a site specific CEMP
should be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority prior
to development commencing.

For noise details on hours of construction, deliveries, types of machinery to be used,
use of quieter/silenced machinery, use of acoustic barriers, prefabrication off site
etc, should be detailed within the CEMP. Where patrticularly noisy activities are
expected to take place then details should be provided on how they intend to lessen
the impact i.e. by limiting especially noisy events to no more than 2 hours in
duration. Details of any monitoring may also be required, in certain situation,
including the location of positions, recording of results and identification of mitigation
measures required.

For vibration details should be provided on any activities which may results in
excessive vibration, e.g. piling, and details of monitoring to be carried out. Locations
of monitoring positions should also be provided along with details of standards used
for determining the acceptability of any vibration undertaken. In the event that
excess vibration occurs then details should be provided on how the developer will
deal with this, i.e. substitution of driven pile foundations with auger pile foundations.
Ideally all monitoring results should be recorded and include what was found and
mitigation measures employed (if any).

With respect to dust mitigation, measures may include, but would not be restricted
to, on site wheel washing, restrictions on use of unmade roads, agreement on the
routes to be used by construction traffic, restriction of stockpile size (also covering or
spraying them to reduce possible dust), targeting sweeping of roads, minimisation of
evaporative emissions and prompt clean up of liquid spills, prohibition of intentional
on-site fires and avoidance of accidental ones, control of construction equipment
emissions and proactive monitoring of dust. Further information on suitable
measures can be found in the dust guidance note produced by the Institute of Air
Quality Management, see http://iagm.co.uk/guidance/. The CEMP must include a
site specific risk assessment of dust impacts in line with the IAQM guidance note
and include mitigation commensurate with the scale of the risks identified.

For lighting details should be provided on artificial lighting to be provided on site,
along with details of measures which will be used to minimise impact, such as
restrictions in hours of operation, location and angling of lighting.

In addition to the above the CEMP should provide a complaints procedure, so that in



Page 77

the event of any complaint from a member of the public about noise, dust, vibration
or lighting the site manager has a clear understanding of how to respond to
complaints received. The procedure should detail how a contact number will be
advertised to the public, what will happen once a complaint had been received (i.e.
investigation), any monitoring to be carried out, how they intend to update the
complainant, and what will happen in the event that the complaint is not resolved.
Written records of any complaints received and actions taken should be kept and
details forwarded to the Local Authority every month during construction works by
email to the following addresses public.protection@york.gov.uk and
planning.enforcement@york.gov.uk

4. DRAINAGE DETAILS - DESIGN CONSIDERATIONS

The developer's attention is drawn to Requirement H3 of the Building Regulations
2000 with regards to hierarchy for surface water dispersal and the use of
Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuD's). Consideration should be given to discharge
to soakaway, infiltration system and watercourse in that priority order. Surface water
discharge to the existing public sewer network must only be as a last resort
therefore sufficient evidence should be provided (i.e. withessed by CYC infiltration
tests to BRE Digest 365) to discount the use of SuD's.

If SuDs methods can be proven to be unsuitable then in accordance with City of
York Councils Sustainable Drainage Systems Guidance for Developers (August
2018), peak run-off from brownfield developments must be attenuated to 70% of the
existing rate (based on 140 I/s/ha of proven by way of CCTV drainage survey
connected impermeable areas). Storage volume calculations, using computer
modelling, must accommodate a 1:30 year storm with no surface flooding, along
with no internal flooding of buildings or surface run-off from the site in a 1:100 year
storm. Proposed areas within the model must also include an additional 30%
allowance for climate change. The modelling must use a range of storm durations,
with both summer and winter profiles, to find the worst-case volume required.

If existing connected impermeable areas are not proven then greenfield sites are to
limit the discharge rate to the pre-developed run off rate. The pre-development run
off rate should be calculated using either IOH 124 or FEH methods (depending on
catchment size) based on the 1 in 1 year event.

Where calculated runoff rates are not available the widely used 1.4l/s/ha rate can be
used as a proxy, however, if the developer can demonstrate that the existing site
discharges more than 1.4l/s/ha a higher existing runoff rate may be agreed and
used as the discharge limit for the proposed development.

Surface water shall not be connected to any foul / combined sewer, if a suitable
surface water sewer is available.



Page 78

5. BREEDING BIRDS

The applicant is reminded that, under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, as
amended (section 1), it is an offence to remove, damage or destroy the nest of any
wild bird while that nest is in use or being built. Planning consent for a development
does not provide a defence against prosecution under this act. Trees and scrub are
likely to contain nesting birds between 1st March and 31st August inclusive. Trees
and scrub are present on the application site and are to be assumed to contain
nesting birds between the above dates, unless a recent survey

has been undertaken by a competent ecologist to assess the nesting bird activity on
site during this period and has shown it is absolutely certain that nesting birds are
not present.

6. INFORMATIVE: MASTERPLAN UPDATE
The previously approved masterplan should be updated to illustrate the location of

the nursery through a new approval of details application for condition 11 and 12 of
the outline consent.



—— g Pemtt i -
g S00G 5 g DQQU

e

Page 79

Land North Of Kimberlow Lane, Heslington,York

i

o2

—

o
¢
a}ﬁ
=
L

B

"N
Sﬁ

"
o
::

2

oﬂ% MK??

3.

Ownership boundary

Application boundary

20/00532/REMM

Organisation

City of York Council

Department

Economy & Place

Comments

Site Location Plan

Date

16 November 2020

SLA Number




This page is intentionally left blank



“—J"'; CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Area Planning Sub-Committee

20/00532/REMM
Land Lying To The North Of Kimberlow Lane Heslington

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 25 November 2020

T8 abed



Location Plan

==

%mo%noodc‘?n
5
%

(=

<

®o

i

b1

\
|
i
I

——— iy ouv

e

¢ oy s —
;H.;M (e— ] -

A Ciom at

-

29 abed

RS

IMoUTT ZUZU



Existing site plan

;
i
!

HERIL
"

$

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 25 November 2020

€8 abed



From NE corner
Looking towards the
lake

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 25 November 2020

78 abed



)
(V)]
Mg
£
£ 3
)
o O
<5
E c
Or
o O
w O

Fis)
(7]
©

L

Page 85

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 25 November 2020



Site from
Kimberlow Lane

p—

rem—

,!u&wmw’wmw P s

T — e

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 25 November 2020




e
A
o, BERER
v ==
| &
Layout plan &
&
G
o
@,
%,
AN
1‘:
%,
1:::‘
%
o
NOTE
Procesed Tiee & Neow 3
g
swn | s seven.
e v -
- e s
.y wl. A —— -
R - -lm-gn
d> oy | oo —HH-EE:
—a - ev - —
- - S~ oo Ltad e
=) Py
. ool [ T

.8 ab;lfa’d

2 DI
= T ZUZU 7




Ground floor plan

4
i

= EET .
: 'D“-EL J
o PR 1| S py P
"7 BN ﬂ'Jﬁ E o4
y i
o~ ol £ 1
-~ ;- i

i

Sesssnsen

i

M

o

e

[T

b -

[

e

e

o g bt

-

e

-

-

——

—

oo o am

ome

i

Mt

o

raiad 1 Praring § S L sy
oy

» o
o |2 seven
e L
| ——————
— | S ———
v | J—
| — i
|- - -
| — St
|
—_— b

88 abed



© s e

-
South and West Elevations
] AT TR ] v 5
_ =i AT R 1 | ' | o _ Q
== ' ' ' D %
Scuth Dlwsafion Srsing Criumra ! Smsmns s —— 0
{lr T (LA T T TR v

:_ H_"“‘""__' seven.

o Jo——

i Dl ‘T

[FESE T v § S Ee R T‘E"E

L~ L e e | o

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 25 November 2020 9



North and East
Elevations

Eant Elvation | ey

¥
I
i
06 abed

1
£l Pkl
A T R N NPT TCTTTTM D =
. T bl B P
i -. | x = g K - B FEATIR Rt A .

...... 5
D . P e B iy
T

——
R — rre— [—
[ — an [ ————
il Frbn
u Linard P
Bdas ) Bin Scds Davarion
i seven.
[ I [
e Feganr o e
e HEA_PE v v e
—
— e s
el o
U -
. ] rreeesy ]
s ~ pra— —_ e | -“"E.._;
| @ it

_ 1 o
Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 25 November 2020 10




Site sections

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 25 November 2020

11

T6 abed



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 93 Agenda Item 4d

COMMITTEE REPORT

Date:

Team:

25 November 2020 Ward: Rawcliffe And Clifton
Without

West Area Parish: Clifton Without Parish
Council

Reference: 20/00148/FULM
Application at: The Tile Company Unit 2 Kettlestring Lane York YO30 4XF

For:

By:

Erection of eight units for light industry or general industry or
storage/distribution or storage/distribution with ancillary trade
counter use (use classes B1(c), B2, B8); erection of one unit for
the use of motor vehicle repairs or light industry or general
industry or storage/distribution or storage/distribution with
ancillary trade counter use (use classes B1(c), B2, B8); erection
of substation; and associated car parking and landscaping
following demolition of Unit 2 Kettlestring Lane and Unit 1
Lysander Close

Mr George Cornwall-Legh

Application Type: Major Full Application
Target Date: 2 December 2020
Recommendation: Approve

1.0 PROPOSAL

1.1 The application comprises:

Erection of eight units for light industry or general industry or
storage/distribution or storage/distribution with ancillary trade counter use
(use classes B1(c), B2, B8);

Erection of one unit (unit 7) for the use of motor vehicle repairs or light
industry or general industry or storage/distribution or storage/distribution
with ancillary trade counter use (use classes B1(c), B2, B8);

Erection of a substation (this is included in the development in case an end
user requires a capacity in excess of current capacity, the sub-station may
not be needed nor implemented);

Associated car parking, refuse/recycling facilities, cycle storage and
landscaping; and

Demolition of two existing commercial units totalling 1441sgm.



Page 94

- Closure of two existing vehicular accesses.
1.2 The proposed commercial floorspace would total 2943sgm GIA, comprising:

3 units of 454sgm
1 unit of 390sgm
1 unit of 325sgm
2 units of 293sgm
2 units of 140sgm

1.3 94 car parking spaces would be provided. Of these, 27 would replace existing
spaces within the site. 67 would be additional spaces required as a result of the
development. 23 of the additional spaces would be made available to unit no 7.
Three existing accesses into the site would be retained to serve the new
development.

APPLICATION SITE

1.4 A commercial plot of 1.02ha within Clifton Moor Industrial Estate. The site
currently has two freestanding commercial units. Both are vacant. Total existing
floorspace is 1441sgm GIA. Three of the site’s four frontages face the public
highway at Kettlestring Lane and Lysander Close. The fourth frontage faces the rear
of a kitchen supply shop. The area is predominantly mixed commercial.

2.0 POLICY CONTEXT

2.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) requires local planning
authorities to seek to approve applications for sustainable development where
possible and work with applicants to secure developments that improve the
economic, social and environmental conditions of the area (paragraph 38).

2.2 The Publication Draft Local Plan 2018 (the 'emerging plan’) was submitted for
examination on 25 May 2018. Phase 1 of the hearings into the examination of the
Local Plan took place in December 2019. In accordance with paragraph 48 of the
NPPF the emerging plan policies can be afforded weight according to:

e The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the
preparation, the greater the weight that may be given);

e The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given);
and



Page 95

e The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the
policies in the previous NPPF published in March 2012. (NB: Under transitional
arrangements plans submitted for examination before 24 January 2019 will be
assessed against the 2012 NPPF).

2.3 Relevant policies of the emerging plan are:

- DP2 Sustainable Development

- DP4 Approach to Development Management
- D1 Placemaking

- D2 Landscape and Setting

- ENV2 Managing Environmental Quality

- ENV5 Sustainable Drainage

- T1 Sustainable Access

- CC1 Renewable and Low Carbon Energy

- CC2 Sustainable Design and Construction

2.4 The City of York Draft Local Plan Incorporating the Fourth Set of Changes was
approved for Development Management purposes in April 2005. It does not form
part of the statutory development plan and its policies carry very limited weight.
3.0 CONSULTATIONS

INTERNAL

Highways Network Management

3.1 The access, site layout, car parking and revised cycle storage are acceptable.
Add standard conditions regarding provision of car parking, turning areas, details of
cycle storage and submission of a travel plan.

Forward Planning

3.2 Given the advanced stage of the preparation of the emerging plan, the lack of
significant objection to the emerging policies relevant to this application and the
consistency with the Framework the policy requirements of the relevant emerging
plan policies should be applied with moderate weight. The application seeks to
provide employment use on a vacant brownfield. The location of the development
and the proposed use is supported, subject to the conditioning of the trade counter
not exceeding 10% of the net floorspace of the building and demonstration of the
carbon reduction/sustainable design and construction measures to be used to meet
policy requirements.

Design, Conservation and Sustainable Development (Landscape Architect)




Page 96

3.3 Most of the trees on the application site, whilst not remarkable, make a
positive contribution to the street. The proposed development would result in the
loss of several trees that are suitable for retention. Furthermore the significant
increase in the footprint of development on the site would prevent the provision of
adequate replacement trees/planting. For the building to sit within a reasonably
attractive landscape of a suitable scale and nature the main building (units 1-7)
should be set much further back from the pavement on Lysander Close so that a
line of trees could be comfortably accommodated in front of this long elevation. In
order to do this there should be some loss of footprint and/or parking spaces.

Public Protection

3.4 The conclusions of the submitted geo-environmental report requiring further
site investigation works are accepted. The investigative works should include gas
monitoring. Due to the location of the proposed units not being close to noise
sensitive receptors - and that previous uses on the site have been similar - this
department has no comments in relation to noise impact. No objection subject to
standard conditions regarding land contamination, hours of construction, submission
of a construction environmental management plan and electric vehicle recharging.

Flood Risk Management

3.5 Soakaways will not work in this location. The existing connected impermeable
areas and connection to public sewer have not been proven therefore the proposed
surface water discharge rate of 62.7 litres per second and proposed connection
point are not agreed. Although the submitted drainage impact assessment is not
acceptable | am content that proper drainage details can be sought by way of
conditions if planning permission is to be granted.

EXTERNAL

Clifton Without Parish Council

3.6 No response.

Yorkshire Water

3.7 If planning permission is to be granted, add conditions requiring separate
systems of drainage for foul and surface water and submission of drainage details,
including 30% attenuation. The developer is proposing to discharge surface water
to public sewer. Yorkshire Water promotes the surface water disposal hierarchy.
The developer must provide evidence to demonstrate that surface water disposal via
infiltration or watercourse are not reasonably practical before considering disposal to
public sewer.



Page 97

Kvle and Upper Ouse Internal Drainage Board

3.8 If the surface water were to be disposed of via a soakaway system,
percolation tests must be undertaken to establish if the ground conditions are
suitable for it. If surface water is to be directed to a mains sewer system the water
authority must be satisfied that the existing system will accept this additional flow.
This should be made a condition of planning permission. If the surface water is to be
discharged to any ordinary watercourse within the IDB’s district consent from the
IDB would be required in addition to planning permission, and would be restricted to
1.4 litres per second per hectare or greenfield runoff rate.

4.0 REPRESENTATIONS
4.1 None received.

5.0 APPRAISAL

5.1 MAIN ISSUES

- Principle of the development

- Local economy

- Character and appearance

- Landscaping

- Access and parking

- Impact on surrounding occupiers
- Drainage

- Climate Change

PRINCIPLE OF THE DEVELOPMENT

5.2 The site is in a well-established commercial area. The proposed uses are
acceptable in principle subject to other material planning considerations.

5.3 The application specifically seeks approval for a trade counter, ancillary to the
proposed storage/distribution use. Extensive trade counter use would reduce the
employment floorspace (contrary to policy EC2 of the emerging plan) and could
have a detrimental impact on existing centres (contrary to policy EC1 of the
emerging plan). To avoid this harm the applicant has accepted a 20% limit on the
amount of floorspace to be occupied by the trade counter. Although Forward
Planning officers suggest that the trade counter occupy no more than 10% of the
total floorspace the council has accepted up to 20% in comparable cases
elsewhere. This higher maximum figure should be made a condition of approval.

LOCAL ECONOMY



Page 98

5.4 The NPPF states that significant weight should be placed on the need to
support economic growth and productivity, taking into account local business needs
and wider opportunities for development (paragraph 80). The proposal would
increase the quantity and quality of commercial floorspace to the general benefit of
the local economy and support the sustainable development policy DP2 of the
emerging plan. The amount of employment that the building would provide will
depend on the end use and user, neither of which are known at present because the
development is speculative. The applicant estimates (using the Homes &
Communities Agency ‘Employment Density Guide’) that if all the units were
occupied by B2 uses (general industry) they would create approximately 82 jobs.
Current employment is zero because the existing buildings on the site are vacant.
The methodology in the Government’s Employment Density Guide would estimate
the existing floorspace to provide approximately 40 jobs, if all units were in B2 use.

CHARACTER AND APPEARANCE

5.5 Paragraph 130 of the NPPF states that permission should be refused for poor
design that fails to take the opportunities available for improving the character and
guality of an area and the way it functions. The scale, design, appearance and
external materials (mainly two-tone grey cladding on a blue brick plinth) are in
keeping with the character of the area. They comply with policy D1 of the emerging
plan and relevant paragraphs in section 12 of the NPPF. A condition should be
attached requiring materials to be submitted for approval.

LANDSCAPING

5.6 Policy D2 of the emerging plan encourages and supports proposals that,
among other things: (ii) conserve and enhance landscape quality and character;
and (v) recognise the significance of landscape features such as mature trees and
hedges. The application includes perimeter landscaping which mainly comprises
some tree retention, replacement tree planting along the Kettlestring Lane (eastern)
frontage, hedge planting, shrubbery and ground cover. Although Clifton Moor is a
commercial area the trees and shrubbery across the Clifton Moor estate make a
valuable contribution to the amenity of the area and the quality of the commercial
environment for occupiers and investors, as do the existing trees and shrubs across
the application site. The existing buildings on the application site are set back from
the street frontages in such a way that the buildings are seen within a reasonable
setting of individual, young-mature trees and shrubbery. The proposals would more
than double the development footprint on the site, removing most of the trees and
restricting the extent of replacement trees/planting. Furthermore, in order to retain
three existing accesses and to provide adequate parking and turning space the new
blocks would be located close to the highway boundary at Lysander Close. As a
result the strip available for landscaping would be only at 3m-5m wide. It would be
sufficient to accommodate five retained maturing trees (2 x cherry, 2 x alder and 1 x



Page 99

birch), a 1.8m-wide hedge and ground cover but would be too narrow to enable
replacement trees of sufficient size and quantity to be provided and to thrive.

ACCESS AND PARKING

5.7 Two existing accesses, i.e. those on the site’s northern boundary, would be
closed. The other existing accesses, on the west and east boundaries, would be
retained. Turning and manoeuvring space for large vehicles would be provided in
the centre of the site, as would most of the car parking. The 94 car parking spaces
would include six spaces to disability standard, recharging facilities for three electric
vehicles and passive provision for three further electric vehicles. All categories
comply with LPA requirements. 19 of the car parking spaces would be for the sole
use of unit 7 (motor vehicle repairs). 20 secure, covered cycle spaces would be
provided. Their number and location comply with LPA standards. Provision of
these cycle spaces should be made a condition of planning permission.

IMPACT ON SURROUNDING OCCUPIERS

5.8 Policy ENV2 states that development will not be permitted where future
occupiers and existing communities would be subject to significant adverse
environmental impacts without effective mitigation. The site is in an
industrial/commercial area with no residential dwellings in the vicinity. In order to
protect the local environment Public Protection officers are recommending various
conditions including submission of a construction environmental management plan
(CEMP). Bearing in mind the area’s commercial character, the scale of the
proposed building, its relatively straightforward construction and/or the safeguards
provided by existing public protection legislation, officers consider that submission of
a CEMP would, in this case, be inappropriate and unnecessary. The other
conditions proposed by Public Protection, namely those relating to land
contamination and provision of electric vehicle recharging points are necessary and
reasonable.

DRAINAGE

5.9 Paragraph 155 of the NPPF states that in determining planning applications
local planning authorities should ensure that flood risk is not increased elsewhere.
Policy ENV4 of the emerging plan states that new development shall not be subject
to unacceptable flood risk and shall be designed and constructed in a way that
mitigates against flood events.

5.10 The site is in low risk flood zone 1 and should not suffer from river flooding.
There is an existing surface and foul water drainage which serves the existing
buildings and car parking. There is an adopted Yorkshire Water surface water
sewer which crosses the site and would have to be diverted. Soakaways will not
work in this location. The schematic drainage layout shows that surface water



Page 100

would be stored on site in attenuation tanks before being discharged to the existing
public sewers at attenuated rates. The existing connected impermeable areas and
connection to public sewer have not been proven therefore the proposed surface
water discharge rate of 62.7 litres per second and proposed connection point are not
agreed. Nevertheless enough information has been submitted to enable proper
drainage details to be sought by way of conditions if planning permission were to be
granted. The diversion of the public sewer would be subject to Yorkshire Water’s
requirements and formal procedure in accordance with Section 185 of the Water
Industry Act 1991.

CLIMATE CHANGE

5.11 The submitted planning statement says that energy efficiency measures will
be incorporated where possible. Specifically, local low carbon and renewable
energy technologies, such as air source heat pumps or solar photovoltaics, will be
investigated during technical design and incorporated where feasible. Policy CC1
requires new buildings to achieve a reduction in carbon emissions of at least 28%.
This should be achieved through the provision of renewable and low carbon
technologies in the locality or through energy efficiency measures. The applicant’s
intention is to meet the requirements of policy CC1 and has agreed to a planning
condition to that effect. To meet the condition the developer has specified a higher
thermal performance for the building fabric, the design loading of the structural
frame has been enhanced to facilitate the future installation of photovoltaics

5.12 Policy CC2 requires all new non-residential buildings with a floorspace greater
than 100sgm to achieve a BREEAM rating of ‘excellent’. This is normally secured
by a planning condition. The applicant originally submitted a BREEAM pre-
assessment report which stated that the development would achieve a rating of
‘very good.” The applicant has confirmed that it is their intention to meet the
requirements of policy CC2 and BREEAM “Excellent” and has identified the
categories where an uplift in the BREEAM score can be achieved, including (in
addition to that outlined in 5.11 above) responsible sourcing of construction
products, recycled and sustainably sourced materials, security performance against
a range of threats.

6.0 CONCLUSION

6.1 The redevelopment would support the local economy by increasing employment
floor space on a brownfield site in a sustainable location. The general building form
and character are in keeping with the character of the area. The loss of a proportion
of the landscaped boundaries of the site is considered to result in some harm to the
character and appearance of the area. However in the planning balance it is
considered that the benefits of the proposal outweigh this identified harm and that
the application complies with national planning policy in the NPPF and relevant
policies of the emerging local plan.



Page 101

7.0 RECOMMENDATION: Approve
1 TIME2 Development start within three years

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans:

1906 PL 100 Location Plan

1906 PL 102R Proposed Site Plan

1906 PL 105D Proposed Ground floor units 1-7
1906 PL 107B Proposed Roof Plan Units 1-7
1906 PL 108G Proposed Elevations Units 1-7
1906 PL 120C Proposed Cycle Storage

1906 PL111B Proposed Elevations Units 8-9
1906 PL 121A Perimeter Landscaping Plan
803 2 LA1A Landscape Plan

803 2 LA2A Bed Planting Plan

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried
out only as approved by the local planning authority.

3 Notwithstanding any proposed materials specified on the approved drawings
or in the application form submitted with the application, samples of the external
materials to be used shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the above-ground construction of
the development. The development shall be carried out using the approved
materials.

Note: Because of limited storage space at our offices it would be appreciated if
sample materials could be made available for inspection at the site. Please make it
clear in your approval of details application when the materials will be available for
inspection and where they are located.

Reason: So as to achieve a visually cohesive appearance.

4 The development shall be carried out to a BRE Environmental Assessment
Method (BREEAM) standard of 'Excellent’. A post-construction stage assessment
shall be carried out and a post-construction stage certificate shall be submitted to
the Local Planning Authority prior to occupation of the building (or in the case of the
certificate as soon as practical after occupation). Should the development fail to
achieve a BREEAM standard of ‘excellent' a report shall be submitted for the written
approval of the Local Planning Authority demonstrating what remedial measures
should be undertaken to achieve 'excellent’. The approved remedial measures shall



Page 102

then be undertaken within a timescale to be approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of achieving a sustainable development in accordance with
the requirements of Policy CC2 of the Publication Draft Local Plan 2018.

5 No above ground works shall take place until details of the reduction in carbon
emissions the development hereby approved would achieve when compared
against Part L of the Building Regulations (the notional building) have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. The
details shall demonstrate a reduction in carbon emissions of at least 28% through
the provision of renewable or low carbon technologies or through energy efficiency
measures when compared to the Target Emission Rate (calculated using Standard
Assessment Procedure methodology as per Part L2A of the Building Regulations).

Reason: In the interests of sustainable design and in accordance with policies CC1
of the Publication Draft Local Plan 2018.

6 Prior to the development commencing details of the cycle parking facilities,
including means of enclosure, for 20 cycles shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The building shall not be occupied until the
cycle parking areas and means of enclosure have been provided within the site in
accordance with such approved details, and these areas shall not be used for any
purpose other than the parking of cycles.

Reason: To promote use of cycles thereby reducing congestion on the adjacent
roads and in the interests of the amenity of neighbours.

7  Each phase of the development shall not be occupied until the areas shown
on the approved plans for parking and manoeuvring of vehicles have been
constructed and laid out in accordance with the approved plans. A phasing plan
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.
Thereafter these areas shall be retained free of all obstructions and used solely for
the intended purpose.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

8  Within 6 months of first occupation of the development a travel plan shall be
submitted to the council for approval in writing. The development shall subsequently
be occupied in accordance with the aims, measures and outcomes of the travel plan
as approved in writing by the local planning authority.

Reason: To ensure that the development complies with national and local
transportation guidance and to ensure that adequate provision is made for the



Page 103

movement of vehicles, pedestrians, cycles and other modes of transport to and from
the site together with parking on site for these users.

9  Prior to development, an investigation and risk assessment (in addition to any
assessment provided with the planning application) shall be undertaken to assess
the nature and extent of any land contamination. The investigation and risk
assessment shall be undertaken by competent persons and a written report of the
findings shall be produced and submitted to the local planning authority for approval
in writing. The report of the findings shall include:

(i)  asurvey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination (including ground
gases where appropriate);

(i)  an assessment of the potential risks to:

0 human health,

0 property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets,
woodland and service lines and pipes,

0 adjoining land,

0 groundwaters and surface waters,

0 ecological systems,

0 archaeological sites and ancient monuments;

(i) an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s).

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.

10  Prior to development, a detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a
condition suitable for the intended use (by removing unacceptable risks to human
health, buildings and other property and the natural and historical environment) shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
scheme shall include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures. The
scheme shall ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A
of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land
after remediation.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.



Page 104

11  Prior to first occupation or use, the approved remediation scheme shall be
carried out in accordance with its terms and a verification report that demonstrates
the effectiveness of the remediation carried out shall be produced and submitted to
the local planning authority for approval in writing.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems.

12 Inthe event that unexpected contamination is found at any time when carrying
out the approved development, it shall be reported in writing immediately to the
Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment shall be undertaken
and where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme shall be prepared and
submitted to the local planning authority for approval in writing. Following completion
of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification report shall
be prepared and submitted to the local planning authority for approval in writing.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.

13  Prior to first occupation of the development 3 no. electric vehicle recharging
points shall be provided in a position and to a specification previously agreed in
writing by the local planning authority. The charging points shall be located in a
prominent position on the site and shall be for the exclusive use of zero emission
vehicles.

Reason: To promote and facilitate the uptake of electric vehicles on the site in line
with the Council's Low Emission Strategy (LES) and the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF).

14  The site shall be developed with separate systems of drainage for foul and
surface water on and off site.

Reason: In the interest of satisfactory and sustainable drainage.

15 Prior to commencement of the development details of foul and surface water
drainage, including balancing/attenuation, shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority and thereafter implemented in accordance
with the approved details.

Reason: In the interests of sustainable drainage.



Page 105

16  No construction works in the relevant area(s) of the site shall commence until
measures to protect the public sewerage infrastructure that is laid within the site
boundary have been implemented in full accordance with details that shall have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
details shall include but not be exclusive to the means of ensuring that access to the
pipe for the purposes of repair and maintenance by the statutory undertaker shall be
retained at all times. If the required stand-off or protection measures are to be
achieved via diversion or closure of the sewer the developer shall submit evidence
to the Local Planning Authority that the diversion or closure has been agreed with
the relevant statutory undertaker and that, prior to construction in the affected area,
the approved works have been undertaken.

Reason: In the interest of public health and maintaining the public sewer network.

17  Unless otherwise approved in writing by the local planning authority, there
shall be no piped discharge of surface water from the development prior to the
completion of the approved surface water drainage works and no building shall be
occupied or brought into use prior to completion of the approved foul drainage
works.

Reason: So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied that no foul and
surface water discharges take place until proper provision has been made for their
disposal.

18 The development shall not be occupied until there has been submitted and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority a detailed landscaping scheme
which shall illustrate the number, species, height and position of trees and shrubs.
This scheme shall be implemented within a period of six months of the completion of
the development. Any trees or plants which die, are removed or become seriously
damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a
similar size and species, unless alternatives are approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with the variety,

suitability and disposition of species within the site in the interests of the character
and appearance of the area.

8.0 INFORMATIVES:
Notes to Applicant
1. STATEMENT OF THE COUNCIL'S POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE APPROACH

In considering the application, the local planning authority has implemented the



Page 106

requirements set out within the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 38)
and, in seeking solutions to problems identified during the processing of the
application, the local planning authority negotiated changes to cycle parking
provision and landscaping.

2. DRAINAGE DESIGN CONSIDERATIONS

The public sewer network does not have capacity to accept an unrestricted
discharge of surface water. Surface water discharge to the existing public sewer
network must only be as a last resort, the developer is required to eliminate other
means of surface water disposal. The developer's attention is drawn to
Requirement H3 of the Building Regulations 2000 with regards to hierarchy for
surface water dispersal and the use of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDs).
Consideration should be given to discharge to soakaway, infiltration system and
watercourse in that priority order. Surface water discharge to the existing public
sewer network must only be as a last resort therefore sufficient evidence should be
provided i.e. witnessed by CYC infiltration tests to BRE Digest 365 to discount the
use of SuDs.

As SuDs methods have been proven to be unsuitable then, in accordance with City
of York Councils City of York Councils Sustainable Drainage Systems Guidance for
Developers (August 2018), and in agreement with the Environment Agency and the
York Consortium of Internal Drainage Boards, peak run-off from Brownfield
developments must be attenuated to 70% of the existing rate (based on 140 I/s/ha
during a 1 in 1 year storm event of proven by way of CCTV drainage survey
connected impermeable areas). Storage volume calculations, using computer
modelling, must accommodate a 1:30 year storm with no surface flooding, along
with no internal flooding of buildings or surface run-off from the site in a 1:100 year
storm. Proposed areas within the model must also include an additional 30%
allowance for climate change. The modelling must use a range of storm durations,
with both summer and winter profiles, to find the worst-case volume required.

If existing connected impermeable areas not proven then Greenfield sites are to limit
the discharge rate to the pre developed run off rate. The pre development run off
rate should be calculated using either IOH 124 or FEH methods (depending on
catchment size).

Where calculated runoff rates are not available the widely used 1.4l/s/ha rate can be
used as a proxy, however, if the developer can demonstrate that the existing site
discharges more than 1.4l/s/ha a higher existing runoff rate may be agreed and
used as the discharge limit for the proposed development. If discharge to public
sewer is required, and all alternatives have been discounted, the receiving public
sewer may not have adequate capacity and it is recommend discussing discharge
rate with Yorkshire Water Services Ltd at an early stage.

In some instances design flows from minor developments may be so small that the



Page 107

restriction of flows may be difficult to achieve. However, through careful selection of
source control or SuDS techniques it should be possible to manage or restrict flows
from the site to a minimum 0.5 I/sec for individual residential properties, please
discuss any design issues with the City of York Council Flood Risk Management
Team.

Surface water shall not be connected to any foul / combined sewer, if a suitable
surface water sewer is available.

The applicant should provide a topographical survey showing the existing and
proposed ground and finished floor levels to ordnance datum for the site and
adjacent properties. The development should not be raised above the level of the
adjacent land, to prevent runoff from the site affecting nearby properties.

Details of the future management and maintenance of the proposed drainage
scheme shall be provided.
3. AINSTY INTERNAL DRAINAGE BOARD

Any surface water discharge into any watercourses in, on, under or near the site
requires consent from the Drainage Board. For further guidance, pre-application
advice & consent form visit: www.shiregroup-idbs.gov.uk, and select 'Kyle & Upper
Ouse IDB'. For direct enquiries e-mail: planning@shiregroup-idbs.gov.uk. No
obstructions within 7 metres of the edge of an ordinary watercourse are permitted
without consent from the Internal Drainage Board. If surface water or works are
planned adjacent to a Main River within the Drainage District, then the Environment
Agency should be contacted for any relevant Permits.

4. ELECTRIC VEHICLE RECHARGING

Electric vehicle charging points should incorporate a suitably rated 32A 'IEC 62196
electrical socket to allow ‘Mode 3' charging of an electric vehicle. The exact
specification is subject to agreement in writing with the council. The location of
charging points should be identified by parking bay marking and signage. All
electrical circuits/installations shall comply with the electrical requirements in force at
the time of installation.

5. HIGHWAY WORKS

You are advised that prior to starting on site consent will be required from the
Highway Authority for the reinstatement of the accesses being proposed under the
Highways Act 1980 (unless alternatively specified under the legislation or
Regulations listed below). For further information please contact the officer named:

Works in the highway - Section 171 - Vehicle Crossing - Section 184 - (01904)
551550 - streetworks@york.gov.uk

Contact details:



Page 108

Case Officer: Kevin O'Connell
Tel No: 01904 552830



Page 109

Unit 2 Kettlestring Lane York YO30 4XF
20/00148/FULM

Scale : 1:2461

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission Organisation |City of York Council
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2000. Department |Economy & Place
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may . .
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Comments Site Location Plan

Date 16 November 2020

SLA Number

Produced using ESRI (UK)'s MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com




This page is intentionally left blank



“—J"'; CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Area Planning Sub-Committee

20/00148/FULM
Unit 2 Kettlestring Lane and Unit 1 Lysander Close

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 25 November 2020

TTT obed



Existing Site Plan

Lysander Close Unit 110 be
demalshed as part of appleaton,

-

o

4
- - =
-
e
=
-
e ".r--uﬂ-.- -
- —_— -
//a-" e T ¥
~ "‘1\
A
.
| - (Y
5
v o !-l
| i [
-~ ‘ w )
W -~
LY R
L LT LI
® B . =
- ™
- -
- = al
-
- -
P
n
*, ~
-
“u - =
n ~ .

Kejesring Lane Linft 2 10 ba
demalshed as part of appleadon.

ellis

archltecture

PLANNING

_

T kol el

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 25 November 2020

21T abed



Proposed site plan

[— e I
Feopomt 1!1-4 mﬁﬁ-m
148 mitn il Camgerys Caagary
) i s Tt - Charsy Ty = Ly

o

if
]

q
i
T
f

F=mal

P
A
[

o

TH

[ )

i
:

LAl

.l
i

=N

it

|rq-| |rq-
-lﬂun-—-l 5 mide rali
e i b
il
e

=

cllhas Moor Bats

|

-4
]

|
i

=

LA EIELIREE £

i
i

i
3L

ik
B

e

i
H

i
i

By
[T

Tedmbn

i

[T

4

3
q

AR

‘|

T ET T . T

archltecture
PLAMMING

T AR e

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 25 November 2020

cTT obed



e

I e I B Ty
Pr—
ek e bl
prsam
=
e
e Ll e & 5

%.

Floor Plans Units 1 -7

Page 114

?
|

?
|

[
Exowoe:
™3

¢ 9
NI O

C}_
®_
E}_

ellis

archltecture

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 25 November 2020



Elevations Units 1 -7

T e EE ey
e h

O sl b
e

b e
T e el

[ [ === E'F_
® ® ® o O ===
= =
b i
haminal dgrags
leewdien

Ghases whroosa =
olos wea

archltecture
PLANNING

A # o

Lz pln
Elising n

|< - | ==

e ae =

Slde Elevatlon e i

Slde Elevation e

e

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 25 November 2020

GTT obed



il e e e
ot ety
1ok e b ey 1 ey e

b ey e o ek b ke
a7 21 m eraarskers e b e ke

Elevations Units 8 -9

Flat Claddng ] sggm
Clazed entance
Sarvics Doar
Mazonary plinth o
ulding basa
UKIT & UNIT &
Front Elevation s Rear Elevation mes -
)
o
D
H
H
()]
Menosmplich clad sosf mmbﬂ
‘erical profled Flat Claddng
clacding
mﬂm cbddnglmm
plni o
bullsing base
Side Elevation s Side Elevation p

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 25 November 2020 6



“Google” Aerial Photo

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 25 November 2020

/TT obed



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	4a Telecommunications Mast Park Inn North Street, [20/01031/FUL]
	Map
	Park Inn Presentation

	4b 44 Tranby Avenue Osbaldwick York YO10 3NJ [20/00338/FUL]
	Map_ 44 Tranby Avenue Osbaldwick
	44 Tranby Ave Presentation

	4c Land Lying to the North Of Kimberlow Lane Heslington, York, [20/00532/REMM]
	Map
	East Campus Presentation

	4d The Tile Company Unit 2 Kettlestring Lane, York YO30 4XF [20/00148/FULM]
	20_00148_FULM  Unit 2 Kettlestring Lane York YO30 4XF
	Kettlestring Lane Presentation


